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APRIL 14, 2022

Dear Shareholders,

We hope this letter finds you and your families safe
and well. We are pleased to share an update on the
Blackstone European Property Income Fund complex
("BEPIF" or the "Fund"), of which SICAV is a part, which
is off to a great start and reshaping the way eligible
individual investors can access Blackstone's established
European real estate investment platform.

BEPIF is a perpetual-life vehicle that invests in
substantially stabilized, income-generating European
real estate properties diversified by sector and
geography. BEPIF takes a high conviction, thematic
investment approach. The Fund focuses on markets and
sectors which have solid supply-demand fundamentals,
strong growth potential and that we believe will perform
well through market cycles. BEPIF aims to deliver

both an attractive stream of income as well as capital
appreciation. Additionally, BEPIF is well-positioned in an
inflationary environment given its focus on investments
in sectors where rental growth is either outpacing or
generally indexed to inflation.

To date, BEPIF has already invested or committed to
deploy capital in a number of high-quality investments,
including the following:'

High-Quality Logistics Portfolios Across Europe

= Approximately 819k square meters, located in key
distribution hubs across Europe’

= Well-positioned to benefit from meaningful
e-commerce growth; for example, in 2021,
e-commerce sales have grown +12% in the UK.
and +11% in Germany’

Prime Data Center in London

® Ninth-most connected data center in the world*

= Benefiting from unprecedented demand for data
creation and storage, with more data created in the
past three years than in all previous history combined®



Trophy Office Building in Dublin (closed in February 2022)

= High-quality, recently refurbished Grade-A office building

= Fully leased to Facebook on a 15-year lease®

® Dublinis one of Europe’s fastest growing knowledge centers and
technology hubs’

Blackstone Property Partners Europe (“"BPP Europe”)®

= Diversified €14B portfolio, typically only accessible to institutional investors
with a high investment minimum

® Substantially stabilized assets with resilient long term cash flows
concentrated in major European cities and markets

= 11% net time weighted return since inception and a 3.4% dividend yield over
the last twelve months

We believe these investments position BEPIF well to meet its objective of
delivering attractive returns with a meaningful income component. Looking
ahead, we have a robust pipeline of attractive investment opportunities to
continue to add to BEPIF's portfolio.

We appreciate the support of our wealth management partners and investors.

Sincerely,
Wity . hetutrer

Frank Cohen Wesley LePatner

Global Head of Core+ Global COO of Core+

Real Estate Real Estate & Director

Blackstone Blackstone
James Seppala Abhishek Agarwal

Head of Real Estate Europe Head of Core+ Real Estate Europe

& Director & Director

Blackstone Blackstone
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Key Highlights
Since launching in October 2021, BEPIF has constructed
a high-quality portfolio of income-generating investments

BEPIF Fund
gross asset value®

€0.53B

BEPIF Fund
net asset value

Portfolio Snapshot (% of Fund gross asset value)

Investment Allocation

6%

M Real Estate Investments (incl. BPP Europe)
I Real Estate Debt Investments
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Sector Allocation”
(Real Estate Investments)

1%
2%

M Logistics Residential
I Data Center [ Other
[ Office

€0.45B

BEPIF SICAV
net asset value

Geographic Allocation”
(Real Estate Investments)

4%
2%
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High Conviction, Thematic Investing

In 2021, we capitalized on our strong sourcing capabilities to acquire high-quality, income-generating investments

Select Investments®”

AIaska Logistics Portfollo i Harbour Exchange Data Center
Various, UK. 810ksgm 16% ownership London, UK. 26ksgm 100% ownership

Coldplay Logistics Portfolio Evergreen Logistics Portfolio
Various, Germany 107ksgm 90% ownership Various, Europe 564k sgm  90% ownership

w Rose Logistics Asset ‘ Infinity Office Asset (closed in February 2022)
Roosendaal, Netherlands 87k sgm  100% ownership Dublin, Ireland 30k sgm  100% ownership
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Portfolio Overview"

Utilizing Blackstone Real Estate’s scale and expertise to orient BEPIF's portfolio toward our
highest conviction markets and sectors

55 98% 97%

properties directly owned occupancy"” logistics, data centers, office
N
Portfolio Map”® . .
P Nordic
1%
/' e
(1
9 = .

NL Germany
< 22%

France
2%
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Board Members

4

Abhishek Agarwal Diana Hoffmann Farhad Karim James Seppala

Head of Core+ Director Global General Counsel of Head of Real Estate Europe
Real Estate Europe Blackstone Real Estate and Blackstone
Blackstone Chief Operating Officer of

Blackstone Europe

N

Katia Panichi Nathalie Charles Wesley LePatner

Director Director Global COO of
Non-affiliated Non-affiliated Core+ Real Estate
Blackstone

Additional Blackstone Leadership

Adam Shah Frank Cohen Gadi Jay Lama Kanazeh

Head of Real Estate Asset Global Head of Core+ Head of Real Estate Capital Chief Operating Officer of
Management Europe Real Estate Markets Europe Institutional Client Solutions

("ICS") in Europe and Head of
Real Estate ICS in Europe, the
Middle East and Asia

ad

Leon Volchyok Paul Quinlan Samir Amichi Simon Davies
Deputy Global General Global Chief Financial Officer Head of Real Estate Head of Real Estate Finance
Counsel for Real Estate of the Real Estate Group Acquisitions Europe Europe
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End Notes

1. Certain investments have been purchased alongside other
Blackstone Real Estate funds.

2. Square meters are at BEPIF share.

3. GlobalData, as of December 2021.

4. JLL, as of September 2021.

5. IDC, as of December 2021.

6. Lease length to expiry.

7. Oxford Economics, as of November 2021.

8. The BPP Europe figures herein represent preliminary,
unaudited results, as of December 31, 2021, which are subject
to further review and adjustment. BPP Europe GAV excludes
cash associated with bonds and the revolving credit facility
that have been issued but not yet allocated to an investment.
Dividend yield represents dividends distributed over average
NAV over the last twelve months. Calculation is consistent
with NCREIF / INREV / ANREV's "Distribution-Dividend Yield"
definition.
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. Except where indicated, all figures in this section as of

December 31, 2021, on a BEPIF consolidated basis of which
SICAV owns an 85% interest.

. Gross Asset Value is measured as the fair value of (i) real

estate investments at BEPIF's share, plus (ii) real estate
debt investments. "Real estate investments” is comprised of
BEPIF's majority-controlled property investments, BEPIF's
look-through share of property investments held by BPPE
and equity in minority investments.

. Excludes real estate debt investments. Totals may not sum

due to rounding.

. Area at 100% share.
. Based on GAV at BEPIF share as of December 312021.

. Occupancy represents economic occupancy. Excluding

investment through BPP Europe, occupancy is 99%.

. Based on percentage of Gross Asset Value of Real Estate

Investments.



Key Risk Factors

Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined have the
meanings set forthin the "Important Disclosure Information” section.

We have classified this product as 3 out of 7, which is a
medium low-risk class. This rates the potential losses from
future performance at a medium low level, and poor market
conditions could impact our capacity to pay you.

There is no specific recommended holding period for the product.
The actual risk can vary significantly, and you may get back less.
You may not be able to sell your product easily or you may have
to sell at a price that significantly impacts on how much you get
back. The summary risk indicator is a guide to the level of risk of this
product compared to other products. It shows how likely it is that
the product will lose money because of movements in the markets
or because we are not able to pay you.

Be aware of currency risk. BEPIF is denominated in Euro (EUR).
You may receive payments in a different currency, so the final
return you will get depend on the exchange rate between the two
currencies. This risk is not considered in the indicator shown above.

No Assurance of Investment Return. This investment involves
ahighdegree of risk and should only be made if aninvestor can
afford the loss of its entire investment. There are no guarantees
or assurances regarding the achievement of investment objectives
or performance. This product does not include any protection from
future market performance so you could lose some or all of your
investment. If we are not able to pay you what is owed, you could
lose some or all of your investment. A Fund's performance may be
volatile. An investment should only be considered by sophisticated
investors who can afford to lose all or a substantial amount of their
investment. A Fund's fees and expenses may offset or exceed its
profits. In considering any investment performance information
contained in the Materials, recipient should bear in mind that past
performance is not necessarily indicative of future results.

Lack of Liquidity. There is no current public trading market for the
Units, and Blackstone does not expect that such a market will ever
develop. Therefore, redemption of units by the Fund will likely be
the only way for you to dispose of your units. The Fund expects to
redeem units at a price equal to the applicable net asset value as of
the redemption date and not based on the price at which you initially
purchased your units. Subject to limited exceptions, units redeemed
within one year of the date of issuance will be redeemed at 95% of
the applicable net asset value as of the redemption date. As a result,

you may receive less than the price you paid for your units when you
sell them to the Fund pursuant to the Fund's redemption program.
The vast majority of the Fund's assets are expected to consist of
real-estate properties and other Investments (including investments
in BPP Europe) that cannot generally be readily liquidated without
impacting the Fund's ability to realize full value upon their disposition.
Therefore, the Fund may not always have a sufficient amount of cash
to immediately satisfy redemption requests. As a result, your ability
to have your units redeemed by the Fund may be limited and at
times you may not be able to liquidate your investment.

In considering any investment performance information contained
in the Materials, investors should bear in mind that past or
estimated performance is not necessarily indicative of future
results and there can be no assurance that Blackstone European
Property Income Fund, (together with its parallel vehicles, "BEPIF"
or the "Fund") will achieve comparable results, implement its
investment strategy, achieve its objectives or avoid substantial
losses or that any expected returns will be met.

Conflicts of Interest. There may be occasions when a Fund's
general partner and / or the investment advisor, and their affiliates
will encounter potential conflicts of interest in connection with
such Fund's activities including, without limitation, the allocation
of investment opportunities, relationships with Blackstone's and
its affiliates' investment banking and advisory clients, and the
diverse interests of such Fund's limited partner group. There can be
no assurance that the Sponsor will identify, mitigate, or resolve all
conflicts of interest in a manner that is favorable to the Fund.

COVID-19. Certain countries have been susceptible to epidemics
which may be designated as pandemics by world health authorities,
most recently COVID-19. The outbreak of such epidemics, together
with any resulting restrictions on travel or quarantines imposed, has
had and will continue to have a negative impact on the economy
and business activity globally (including in the countries in which
the Fund invests), and thereby is expected to adversely affect the
performance of the Fund's investments. Furthermore, the rapid
development of epidemics could preclude prediction as to their
ultimate adverse impact on economic and market conditions, and,
as a result, presents material uncertainty and risk with respect to
the Fund and the performance of its investments.

Diversification; Potential Lack Thereof. Diversification is not a

guarantee of either a return or protection against loss in declining
markets. The number of investments which a Fund makes may be
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Key Risk Factors (cont'd)

limited, which would cause the Fund's investments to be more
susceptible to fluctuations in value resulting from adverse economic
or business conditions with respect thereto. There is no assurance
that any of the Fund's investments will perform well or even return
capital; if certain investments perform unfavorably, for the Fund to
achieve above-average returns, one or a few of its investments must
perform very well. There is no assurance that this will be the case.
In addition, certain geographic regions and/or industries in which
the Fund is heavily invested may be more adversely affected from
economic pressures when compared to other geographic regions
and/or industries.

Forward-Looking Statements. Certain information contained
in the Materials constitutes "forward-looking statements,” which
can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology or the
negatives thereof. These may include financial estimates and their
underlying assumptions, statements about plans, objectives and
expectations with respect to future operations, and statements
regarding future performance. Such forward-looking statements
are inherently uncertain and there are or may be important factors
that could cause actual outcomes or results to differ materially
from those indicated in such statements. Blackstone believes these
factors include but are not limited to those described under the
section entitled "Risk Factors" in its Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the most recent fiscal year ended December 31 of that year,
and any such updated factors included in its periodic filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, which are accessible on
the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. These factors should not be
construed as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with
the other cautionary statements that are included in the Materials
and in the filings. Blackstone undertakes no obligation to publicly
update or review any forward-looking statement, whether as a
result of new information, future developments or otherwise.
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Highly Competitive Market for Investment Opportunities. The
activity of identifying, completing and realizing attractive investments
is highly competitive, and involves a high degree of uncertainty. There
can be no assurance that a Fund will be able to locate, consummate
and exit investments that satisfy its objectives or realize upon their
values or that a Fund will be able to fully invest its committed capital.
There is no guarantee that investment opportunities will be allocated
to a Fund and / or that the activities of Blackstone's other funds will
not adversely affect the interests of such Fund.

llliquidity and Variable Valuation. There is no organized
secondary market for investors' interests in any Fund nor is there
an organized market for which to sell a Fund's underlying illiquid
investments, and none is expected to develop. Withdrawal and
transfer of interests in a Fund are subject to various restrictions,
and similar restrictions will apply in respect of the Fund's underlying
investments. Further, the valuation of a Fund's investments will be
difficult, may be based on imperfect information and is subject to
inherent uncertainties, and the resulting values may differ from
values that would have been determined had a ready market existed
for such investments, from values placed on such investments by
other investors and from prices at which such investments may
ultimately be sold.

Leverage; Borrowings Under a Subscription Facility. A Fund
may useleverage, and a Fund may utilize borrowings from Blackstone
Inc. or under its subscription-based credit facility in advance of or in
lieu of receiving investors' capital contributions. The use of leverage
or borrowings magnifies investment, market and certain other
risks and may be significant. A Fund's performance will be affected
by the availability and terms of any leverage as such leverage will
enhance returns from investments to the extent such returns
exceed the costs of borrowings by such Fund. The leveraged capital
structure of such assets will increase their exposure to certain



Key Risk Factors (cont'd)

factors such as rising interest rates, downturns in the economy, or
deterioration in the financial condition of such assets or industry.
In the event an investment cannot generate adequate cash flow to
meet its debt service, a Fund may suffer a partial or total loss of
capital invested in the investment, which may adversely affect the
returns of such Fund. In the case of borrowings used in advance of
or in lieu of receiving investors' capital contributions, such use will
result in higher or lower reported returns than if investors' capital
had been contributed at the inception of an investment because
calculations of returns to investors are based on the payment date
of investors' capital contributions. In addition, because a Fund will
pay all expenses, including interest, associated with the use of
leverage or borrowings, investors will indirectly bear such costs.

Material, Non-Public Information. In connection with other
activities of Blackstone, certain Blackstone personnel may acquire
confidential or material non-public information or be restricted from
initiating transactions in certain securities, including on a Fund's
behalf. As such, a Fund may not be able to initiate a transaction or
sell an investment. In addition, policies and procedures maintained
by Blackstone to deter the inappropriate sharing of material non-
public information may limit the ability of Blackstone personnel to
share information with personnel in Blackstone's other business
groups, which may ultimately reduce the positive synergies
expected to be realized by a Fund as part of the broader Blackstone
investment platform.

No Assurance of Investment Return. Prospective investors
should be aware that an investment in a Fund is speculative and
involves a high degree of risk. There can be no assurance that a
Fund will achieve comparable results, implement its investment
strategy, achieve its objectives or avoid substantial losses or
that any expected returns will be met (or that the returns will be
commensurate with the risks of investing in the type of transactions

described herein). The portfolio companies in which a Fund may
invest (directly or indirectly) are speculative investments and
will be subject to significant business and financial risks. A Fund's
performance may be volatile. An investment should only be
considered by sophisticated investors who can afford to lose all or a
substantial amount of their investment. A Fund's fees and expenses
may offset or exceed its profits.

Real Estate Investments. A Fund's investments do and will
consist primarily of real estate investments and real estate related
investments. All real estate investments are subject to some degree
of risk. For example, real estate investments are relatively illiquid
and, therefore, will tend to limit Blackstone's ability to vary a Fund's
portfolio promptly in response to changes in economic or other
conditions. No assurances can be given that the fair market value of
any real estate investments held by a Fund will not decrease in the
future or that such Fund will recognize full value for any investment
that such Fund is required to sell for liquidity reasons. Additionally,
deterioration of real estate fundamentals generally may negatively
impact the performance of a Fund.

Reliance on Key Management Personnel. The success of a Fund
will depend, in large part, upon the skill and expertise of certain
Blackstone professionals. In the event of the death, disability
or departure of any key Blackstone professionals, the business
and the performance of a Fund may be adversely affected. Some
Blackstone professionals may have other responsibilities, including
senior management responsibilities, throughout Blackstone and,
therefore, conflicts are expected to arise in the allocation of such
personnel’s time (including as a result of such personnel deriving
financial benefit from these other activities, including fees and
performance-based compensation).
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Important Disclosure Information

This document (together with any attachments, appendices, and
related materials, the "Materials") is provided on a confidential basis
for informational due diligence purposes only and is not, and may
not be relied on in any manner as legal, tax, investment, accounting
or other advice or as an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy,
any security or instrument in or to participate in any trading strategy
with any Blackstone fund, account or other investment vehicle (each
a"Fund"), nor shallit or the fact of its distribution form the basis of, or
be relied on in connection with, any contract or investment decision.
If such offer is made, it will only be made by means of an offering
memorandum (collectively with additional offering documents, the
"Offering Documents”), which would contain material information
(including certain risks of investing in such Fund) not contained in
the Materials and which would supersede and qualify in its entirety
the information set forth in the Materials. Any decision to invest in
a Fund should be made after reviewing the Offering Documents of
such Fund, conducting such investigations as the investor deems
necessary and consulting the investor's own legal, accounting and
tax advisers to make an independent determination of the suitability
and consequences of an investment in such Fund. In the event that
the descriptions or terms described herein are inconsistent with or
contrary to the descriptions in or terms of the Offering Documents,
the Offering Documents shall control. None of Blackstone, its funds,
nor any of their affiliates makes any representation or warranty,
express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained herein and nothing contained herein should
be relied upon as a promise or representation as to past or future
performance of aFund or any other entity, transaction, or investment.
All information is as of December 31, 2021 (the “Reporting Date"),
unless otherwise indicated and may change materially in the future.
Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined have the
meanings set forth in the Offering Documents.

The Materials contain highly confidential information regarding
Blackstone and a Fund's investments, strategy and organization.
Your acceptance of the Materials constitutes your agreement
that the Materials are designated as "trade secret” and "highly
confidential” by Blackstone and are neither publicly available nor do
they constitute a publicrecord and that you shall (i) keep confidential
all the information contained in the Materials, as well as any
information derived by you from the information contained in the
Materials (collectively, "Confidential Information”) and not disclose
any such Confidential Information to any other person (including in
response to any Freedom of Information Act, public records statute,
or similar request), (ii) not use any of the Confidential Information
for any purpose other than to evaluate or monitor investments
in a Fund, (iii) not use the Confidential Information for purposes
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of trading securities, including, without limitation, securities of
Blackstone or its portfolio companies, (iv) except to download
the Materials from BXAccess, not copy the Materials without the
prior consent of Blackstone, and (v) promptly return any or all of
the Materials and copies hereof to Blackstone upon Blackstone's
request, in each case subject to the confidentiality provisions more
fully set forth in a Fund's Offering Documents and any other written
agreement(s) between the recipient and Blackstone, a current
or potential portfolio company, or a third-party service provider
engaged by Blackstone in connection with evaluation of a potential
investment opportunity.

Blackstone Securities Partners L.P. ("BSP") is a broker-dealer whose
purpose is to distribute Blackstone managed or affiliated products.
BSP provides services to its Blackstone affiliates, not to investors
in its funds, strategies or other products. BSP does not make any
recommendation regarding, and will not monitor, any investment.
As such, when BSP presents an investment strategy or product
to an investor, BSP does not collect the information necessary to
determine—and BSP does not engage in a determination regarding—
whether an investment in the strategy or product is in the best
interests of, or is suitable for, the investor. You should exercise
your own judgment and/or consult with a professional advisor to
determine whether it is advisable for you to invest in any Blackstone
strategy or product. Please note that BSP may not provide the kinds
of financial services that you might expect from another financial
intermediary, such as overseeing any brokerage or similar account.
For financial advice relating to an investment in any Blackstone
strategy or product, contact your own professional advisor.

Blackstone Proprietary Data. Certain information and data
provided herein is based on Blackstone proprietary knowledge and
data. Portfolio companies may provide proprietary market data
to Blackstone, including about local market supply and demand
conditions, current market rents and operating expenses, capital
expenditures, and valuations for multiple assets. Such proprietary
market dataisused by Blackstonetoevaluate market trendsaswellas
to underwrite potential and existing investments. While Blackstone
currently believes that such informationis reliable for purposes used
herein, it is subject to change, and reflects Blackstone's opinion as
to whether the amount, nature and quality of the data is sufficient
for the applicable conclusion, and no representations are made as
to the accuracy or completeness thereof.

Images. The Materials contain select images of certain investments
that are provided for illustrative purposes only and may not be
representative of an entire asset or portfolio or of a Fund's entire



Important Disclosure Information (cont'd)

portfolio. Such images may be digital renderings of investments
rather than actual photos.

Logos. The logos presented herein were not selected based on
performance of the applicable company or sponsor to which they
pertain. Logos were selected to illustrate managers and/or portfolio
companies that are indicative representations of the thesis, theme
or trend discussed on the slide(s) where they appear. In Blackstone's
opinion, the logos selected were generally the most applicable
examples of the given thesis, theme or trend discussed on the
relevant slide(s). All rights to the trademarks and/or logos presented
herein belong to their respective owners and Blackstone's use
hereof does not imply an affiliation with, or endorsement by, the
owners of these logos.

Non-GAAP Measures. Non-GAAP measures (including, but not
limited to, time weighted gross and net returns, including income
and appreciation, across all time periods) are estimates based on
information available to Blackstone as of the date cited, including
information received from third parties. There may not be uniform
methods for calculating such measures and such methods are
subject to change over time. Blackstone believes that such non-
GAAP measures constitute useful methods to convey information
to current and prospective investors that Blackstone believes is
relevant and meaningful in understanding and/or evaluating the
fund or investment in question. However, such non-GAAP measures
should not be considered to be more relevant or accurate than
GAAP methodologies and should not be viewed as alternatives to
GAAP methodologies. In addition, third party information used to
calculate such non-GAAP measures is believed to be reliable, but
no representations are made as to the accuracy or completeness
thereof and none of Blackstone, its funds, nor any of their affiliates
take any responsibility for any such information

Performance Calculation. Unless otherwise stated, all Internal
Rate of Return ("IRR") and Multiple On Invested Capital ("MOIC")
calculations, as applicable, include realized and unrealized values
and are presented on a "gross” basis (i.e., before, as applicable,
management fees, fund fees, servicing fees, organizational
expenses, partnership-level expenses, the general partner's
allocation of profit, certain taxes and certain other expenses borne
by investors, which in the aggregate are expected to be substantial).
Net MOIC is determined by (a) taking the sum of (i) the amounts
distributed by the Fund to limited partners prior to the reference
date and (i) the net asset value of the Limited Partners on the
reference date, (b) reducing the preceding amount by management
fees and servicing fees paid by the limited partners directly to the

manager (i.e., not paid by the Fund) if applicable, and (c) dividing the
preceding amount by total capital contributions made by the limited
partners in respect of the investments made by the Fund. Gross
MOIC at the Fund level is determined by dividing (a) the realized and
unrealized value of the Fund's investments by (b) the Fund's total
invested capital in such investments. Gross MOIC at the investment
level is determined by dividing (a) the realized and unrealized value
of the investment by (b) the total capital called by the Fund from
its investors for such investment (or in the case of BPP, invested by
the Fund in such investment). Gross IRR is the annual discount rate,
based on a 365-day year, that makes the net present value of all
cash inflows and outflows (the original invested capital, the income
and expenses, the realized proceeds, and any other associated cash
flows) with respect to the applicable investment(s) equal to zero.
For purposes of Gross IRR calculations, cash outflows with respect
to an investment are deemed to occur (a) when capital is invested
by the Fund (including from Fund-level borrowings) in the case
of BPP, and (b) when the capital is called for the investment from
Fund investors in the case of BREP and BREDS (not, for avoidance
of doubt, when Fund-level borrowings are used to make the
investment). Also for purposes of the Gross IRR calculations, cash
inflows with respect to an investment are deemed to occur: (i) in the
case of investment realizations and current income, upon receipt
by the Fund in the case of BREP and BPP and on the date of the
related distribution by the Fund to investors in the case of BREDS,
and (i) in the case of unrealized investments, the fair value at the
end of the indicated period as determined by Blackstone. Net IRR
is calculated at the Fund level using amounts drawn or called from
investors as outflows, amounts distributed to investors as inflows,
and the fair value of the Fund's unrealized investments at the end
of the indicated period (as determined by Blackstone) as inflows.
Net IRR therefore reflects returns after taking into account, as
applicable, management fees, fund fees, organizational expenses,
partnership-level expenses, the general partner's allocation of profit
and servicing fees, but before certain taxes and withholdings. Net
IRR of a Fund does not include, if applicable, amounts associated
with the General Partner commitment or Blackstone employee
side-by-side program, which do not bear fees or carried interest
and therefore generate higher returns than the Fund to which they
relate. Any IRR is a function of the length of time from the initial
outflow to the ultimate inflow (or hypothetical inflow), in each case,
as described herein. For a given dollar amount invested and holding
values constant, the IRR decreases as the investment holding period
increases. Actual realized value of a Fund's unrealized investments
may differ materially from the values used to calculate the IRRs/
MOICs reflected herein. For certain recent individual investments
and Funds, performance metrics may be shown as "n/m" or "0.0%"
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Important Disclosure Information (cont'd)

due to such Funds' or investments', as applicable, short duration
and limited amount of activity and, in certain cases, even though
the actual amounts are negative. In addition, in the case of BREP
and BREDS, and in the case of BPP only with respect to Net IRR,
IRR (both gross and net) is calculated based on the due date and
amount of capital contributions from limited partners, not the
timing or amount of Fund-level borrowings such as the subscription
line of credit; as a result, use of Fund level-borrowings will impact
calculations of returns and will result in a higher or lower reported
IRR than if the amounts borrowed had instead been funded through
capital contributions made by the Limited Partners to the Fund.
Individual investors in the Funds described in this presentation
have not necessarily experienced the performance described
herein. The management fees or fund fees (as applicable) paid by
investors differ, in some cases materially, from those paid by other
investors due to, among other factors, fee holidays and fee breaks
for investors committing by certain dates or at or above specified
amounts. In addition, certain investors may be admitted to the
Fund at different times and, accordingly, contribute capital later
than other investors (and pay carrying costs related thereto), and
may pay investor servicing fees to the manager. Finally, different
alternative investment vehicles, feeder funds and other vehicles
through which investors make individual investments may bear
different taxes and otherwise have different effective tax rates. For
all of these reasons and others, performance for individual investors
varies from the performance stated herein. Further information
regarding performance calculations is available upon request.

Third Party Information. Certain information contained in the
Materials has been obtained from sources outside Blackstone,
which in certain cases have not been updated through the date
hereof. While such information is believed to be reliable for
purposes used herein, no representations are made as to the
accuracy or completeness thereof and none of Blackstone, its
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funds, nor any of their affiliates takes any responsibility for, and has
not independently verified, any such information.

Time Weighted Returns. Time weighted returns are calculated
using the equity method of fair value operating model accounting
consistent with prevalent practices of many open-end real estate
funds and indices. Gross time weighted returns are presented
after fund level expenses and before management and incentive
fees are deducted. Net time weighted returns are presented after
management and incentive fees and exclude the GP commitment.
Both gross and net returns are levered and after partnership
expenses. Fund time weighted returns are calculated on a quarterly
basis using the beginning of quarter net asset value, adjusted for
time weighted contributions and distributions including reinvested
dividends. Fund contributions and distributions are weighted based
on the date of cash flows and include contributions in-kind, as
applicable. Fund income returns are based on the Funds' legal share
of accrual basis recognition of contractual rentalincome and include
property and Fund level income and expenses incurred during the
period. Costs incurred to obtain investment level financing are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the loan which
approximates the effective interest method. Appreciation returns
are based on net realized and unrealized gains (losses) resulting
from investment sales and investments held at fair value. Trailing
1-Year, 3-Year, 5-Year and since inception time-weighted returns
are calculated by geometrically linking quarterly returns. Income
and appreciation returns may not equal total returns due to the
compounding effects of linking quarterly returns.

Trends. There can be no assurances that any of the trends
described herein will continue or will not reverse. Past events and
trends do not imply, predict or guarantee, and are not necessarily
indicative of, future events or results.



Financial Section

BEPIF SICAV 2021 ANNUAL REPORT | 15



Management Report

This Management Report of Blackstone European Property Income Fund SICAV (“BEPIF Feeder SICAV”) is prepared
for the period from 11 June 2021 (BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s date of incorporation) to 31 December 2021.

Any capitalised term not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the version of the
prospectus of BEPIF Feeder SICAV applicable at the date of issuance of this report (the “Prospectus”). The
Prospectus is available on www.bepif.com.

I. OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS
Corporate structure

BEPIF is a real estate investment programme operated through several entities and the term “BEPIF” is used
throughout this Management Report to refer to the programme as a whole. The primary vehicles for investors to
subscribe to BEPIF are BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP (as defined below).

BEPIF invests primarily in substantially stabilized, income-generating European real estate, and to a lesser extent, in
real estate related debt. BEPIF seeks to bring Blackstone’s leading institutional-quality European real estate
investment platform primarily to income-focused individual investors.

BEPIF Feeder SICAV is as an open-ended, commingled fund organized as a multi-compartment Luxembourg
investment company with variable capital (société d’investissement a capital variable) governed by Part Il of the
2010 Law.

BEPIF Feeder SICAV is currently set up with one compartment, namely Blackstone European Property Income Fund
SICAV BEPIF Feeder SICAV — | (the “Sub-Fund”). This Management Report relates to BEPIF Feeder SICAV as a whole.
For the avoidance of doubt, any reference to BEPIF Feeder SICAV in this Management Report shall be understood,
as the case may be, as a reference to the Sub-Fund, BEPIF Feeder SICAV or BEPIF Feeder SICAV acting for the
account of the Sub-Fund.

Blackstone European Property Income Fund (Master) FCP (“BEPIF Master FCP”), a Luxembourg mutual fund (fonds
commun de placement) governed by Part Il of the 2010 Law is the master fund for BEPIF Feeder SICAV. BEPIF
Feeder SICAV together with BEPIF Master FCP is referred to as the “Group”.

The investment objective and strategies, related risk factors and potential conflicts of interest, subscription and
redemption terms, calculation of net asset value, fees and expenses, tax and regulatory considerations, and other
aspects of the activities of BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP are substantially identical except as
specifically identified in their respective prospectuses.

In December 2021, a Parallel Vehicle, Blackstone European Property Income Fund S.L.P. (“Blackstone Bepimmo”)
was established to invest alongside BEPIF Master FCP.

Alternative Investment Fund Manager

BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP qualify as externally managed alternative investment funds within the
meaning of Directive 2011/61/EU of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund Managers (“AIFMD”).

Blackstone Europe Fund Management S.a r.l. (the “AIFM”) is the Alternative Investment Fund Manager of BEPIF
Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP. The AIFM has been authorized by the Luxembourg Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the “CSSF”) as an alternative investment fund manager pursuant to the law of 12
July 2013 (“2013 Law”) on Alternative Investment Fund Managers, as may be amended from time to time, which
has implemented the AIFMD in Luxembourg (the “AIFM Law”).

An annual report is made available by the AIFM in order to comply with the annual requirements for periodic and
regular disclosure to investors set out under (i) AIFMD and (ii) the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No

16



Management Report (continued)

231/2013 of 19 December 2012 (the “Regulation”). These disclosures for 31 December 2021 have been produced
in accordance with AIFMD and the Regulation. The AIFMD report as required under AIFMD and the Regulation will
be available by 30 June 2022.

The AIFM is in charge, inter alia, of the risk management and portfolio management functions of BEPIF Feeder
SICAV (and also BEPIF Master FCP), but it has delegated entirely the portfolio management function of BEPIF
Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP to the Investment Manager (see below). The AIFM is responsible for the
proper and independent valuation of the assets of BEPIF Feeder SICAV (and also BEPIF Master FCP) and oversight of
the calculation of its Net Asset Value (being the valuation, either individually or in total, of each share class).

Investment Manager

The portfolio management function of BEPIF Feeder SICAV (and also BEPIF Master FCP) is performed by Blackstone
Property Advisors L.P. (the “Investment Manager”), which is part of Blackstone Inc. (together with its affiliates,
“Blackstone”), a leading global investment firm investing capital on behalf of pension funds, large institutions and
individuals. Blackstone invests across alternative asset classes in real estate, private equity, credit and hedge funds
as well as in infrastructure, life sciences, insurance and growth equity.

The real estate group of Blackstone Inc., Blackstone Real Estate, has been investing in real estate since 1991 in a
variety of market conditions, including during periods of market distress as well as during stable macroeconomic
environments. The scale of Blackstone Real Estate’s capital, the depth and expertise of its team, and the
proprietary data from its portfolio put Blackstone Real Estate in what Blackstone believes to be an unparalleled
position to identify differentiated investment opportunities for its funds and to drive value for its investors.

Il. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Investment Objectives

BEPIF’s investment objective is to generate attractive risk-adjusted returns on a diversified direct and indirect
portfolio of real estate and real estate-related investments over the medium-to-long term. BEPIF’'s investment
objectives are to:

e Provide attractive current income in the form of regular, stable cash distributions;
e Preserve and protect invested capital;

e Realize appreciation in net asset value from proactive investment management and asset management;
and

e Provide an investment alternative for investors seeking to allocate a portion of their long-term investment
portfolios to private real estate which historically has had lower pricing volatility than listed public real
estate companies.!

Investment Strategy

BEPIF’s investment strategy is to acquire substantially stabilized, income-generating European real estate, and to a
lesser extent, in real estate related debt. BEPIF seeks to bring Blackstone’s leading institutional-quality European
real estate investment platform primarily to income-focused individual investors.

BEPIF applies Blackstone Real Estate’s differentiated approach by focusing on thematic investing and active asset
and portfolio management. BEPIF targets an allocation of approximately 90% of the gross asset value of its
investments primarily in substantially stabilized, income-generating European real estate consisting of real estate
investments either through direct investments in Property or through units in BPPE. BPPE is Blackstone Property
Partners Europe, Blackstone’s flagship European Core+ real estate fund for institutional investors, providing BEPIF
exposure to BPPE’s high-quality, diversified real estate portfolio. BPPE’s Alternative Investment Fund Manager is
also the AIFM.

1 There can be no assurance that BEPIF will achieve its investment objectives. See “Risk Factors, Potential
Conflicts of Interest and Other Considerations” of the Prospectus.
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BEPIF may invest up to 10% of the gross asset value of its investments in public and private real estate-related
debt, in order to provide income, facilitate capital deployment and as a potential source of liquidity.2

BEPIF targets real estate opportunities where Blackstone Real Estate’s ability to navigate complexity, invest in
scale, and provide speed and certainty of execution to motivated sellers will allow BEPIF to make high-quality
investments at attractive bases. BEPIF generally focuses on investments with the following characteristics:

e High-quality income-generating European real estate;
e Assets with capital appreciation potential;

e Assets that could benefit from Blackstone’s active approach to asset management and its deep asset
management expertise; and

e Large or complex investments that limit the number of competing buyers, and where BEPIF can benefit
from Blackstone’s strategic advantages of scale, speed and certainty of execution.

BEPIF will focus on driving income growth and maximizing value through active portfolio management, efficient
and flexible financing, and various asset management initiatives including selective asset sales.

To date, BEPIF has made multiple investments in Blackstone Real Estate’s high conviction themes, including high-
quality pan-European logistics portfolios, a prime data centre in the United Kingdom, and, subsequent to the year
end, a Class-A office asset in Ireland (see below for further details on investments). As a result of BEPIF’s thoughtful
sector and market selection, the portfolio is well-positioned for a rising rate, inflationary environment.

BEPIF’s portfolio will continue to be concentrated in markets and sectors where Blackstone Real Estate sees
opportunities for outsized growth; focused on investments in sectors where rent growth is either outpacing or
generally linked to inflation.

Investment Restrictions

In accordance with the diversification requirements of Circular IML 91/75, BEPIF Feeder SICAV will not directly or
indirectly invest more than 20% of its Net Asset Value at the time of acquisition in any single Property; provided
that such diversification will be assessed on a look-through basis and no remedial action will be required if such
restriction is exceeded for any reason other than the acquisition of a new Property (including the exercise of rights
attached to an Investment). For purposes of this restriction, BEPIF Feeder SICAV will treat its proportionate interest
in each of BPPE’s property investments as a Property Investment for BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s investment limitations.

This 20% diversification requirement will not apply during a ramp-up period of up to four years after the initial
subscription is accepted.

Investing activity in the period

Investments of the Group are made alongside Blackstone Bepimmo. Figures quoted below are BEPIF’s share of the
investment and are not prorated to the look-through ownership of BEPIF Master SICAV’s shareholders. At
31 December 2021, BEPIF Feeder SICAV had a look-through ownership of c.85% of BEPIF.

2 BEPIF’s investments at any given time may exceed and otherwise vary materially from the allocation targets
above.
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At 31 December 2021, BEPIF had deployed all capital raised, and owned a portfolio of income producing properties
valued at €1.3bn, €102m of BPPE Units representing €185m of Gross Asset Value3 (or GAV) on a look-through basis,
and €94m of real estate debt (details on individual investments are provided below). The investments to date are
consistent with BEPIF’s strategy of acquiring high-quality, diversified, income-producing, commercial real estate
assets concentrated in high growth markets and sectors across Europe.

Debt
6%

Direct RE
(incl. BPPE)
94%

BEPIF investments in direct real estate (including BPPE on a look-through basis) and real estate debt as a
percentage of Gross Asset Value as at 31 December 2021

Summary of Portfolio

The following table and descriptions provide a summary of BEPIF’s portfolio:

Gross Asset

Cost Value as of

€millions Basis 31 December 2021 % of Total
LOgiStiCS v\ vt 1,001 1,026 66%

Alaska Logistics Portfolio

Coldplay Logistics Portfolio

Evergreen Logistics Portfolio

Rose Logistics Asset
DataCentre ......... ..t 235 239 16%

Harbour Exchange

1,236 1,265

Investments through BPPE(® ... ... ............. 184 185 12%
Direct real estate investments (including BPPE) . ... .. 1,420 1,450 94%
Real estate debt investments ..................... 94 94 6%
Total . ... 1,514 1,544

(1) Investments through BPPE represent BEPIF’s pro rata share of the Gross Asset Value of real estate investments
of BPPE. The cost of the units acquired in BPPE is €100.0m with a fair value of €101.7m.

Logistics
Alaska Logistics Portfolio

In October 2021, BEPIF acquired a 16% equity interest in a portfolio of 27 logistics assets totalling 810,000 square
meters focused in last-mile locations and concentrated in key distribution markets in the United Kingdom.*

3 Gross Asset Value is measured as the fair value of (i) real estate investments at BEPIF’s share, plus (ii) real estate
debt investments. “Real estate investments” is comprised of BEPIF's majority-controlled property investments,
BEPIF’s look-through share of property investments held by BPPE and equity in minority investments.

4 Other Blackstone managed Core+ real estate funds own 75% of the Alaska Logistics Portfolio.
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Coldplay Logistics Portfolio

In October 2021, BEPIF acquired a 90% equity interest in a portfolio of 13 high-quality cold storage logistics assets
totalling 107,000 square meters in Germany. BEPIF is under contract to acquire an additional five assets for this
portfolio.>

Evergreen Logistics Portfolio

In December 2021, BEPIF acquired a 90% interest in a 564,000 square meter pan-European logistics portfolio
comprised of 12 high-quality well-located assets with the majority of the portfolio in the United Kingdom, Germany
and Spain, and the remainder in Poland and the Czech Republic.

Rose Logistics Asset

In December 2021, BEPIF acquired a 100% interest in a 87,000 square meter prime logistics asset located in
Roosendaal, Netherlands.

Data Centre
Harbour Exchange

In December 2021, BEPIF acquired 100% of a 26,000 square meter data centre in London, United Kingdom.
Harbour Exchange is a network-dense data centre and the ninth most connected data centre in the world.®

Investments through BPPE

In November 2021, BEPIF made a €100m equity investment into BPPE Units, equating to €184m of GAV on a look-
through basis, allowing BEPIF to further diversify its portfolio across sectors and geographies.

BPPE invests primarily in high-quality, substantially stabilized assets and portfolios across logistics, office,
residential and retail assets in major European markets and gateway cities. BPPE is focused on maximizing value
and driving income growth through active portfolio management, efficient and flexible financing, and various asset
management initiatives including selective asset sales. As of 31 December 2021, BPPE’s investment gross asset
value was €14.4 billion, and the fund’s portfolio comprised 36 investments in 22 European countries. BPPE’s largest
investments include a minority stake in Logicor, a pan-European logistics company comprised of 588 assets totaling
13.7 million square meters, the Vantage Portfolio, a pan-European portfolio comprised of 34 assets totaling
399,000 square meters primarily located in Paris, France and London, U.K., and the Rialto Portfolio, a mixed-use
portfolio totaling 91,000 square meters located primarily in the historical city centre of Milan, Italy.

5 A Blackstone managed Core+ real estate fund owns the remaining 10% of the Coldplay and Evergreen Logistics
Portfolio.
6 JLL, as of September 2021.
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Real estate debt investments
In November 2021, BEPIF provided a bilateral loan to a subsidiary of a pan-European logistics company.

The following charts further describe the diversification of BEPIF’s investments in real estate as a percentage of
Gross Asset Value as of 31 December 2021; including its pro rata share of real estate held by BPPE (totals may not
sum due to rounding).
. _Office Other Italy Other
Residential 29 1% France 70, 4%

2% | Spain 2% |
4%

Data
Centres

16% Netherlands

12%

Logistics
79% Germany

22%

Investments following the period end
Infinity Office Asset

In February 2022, BEPIF acquired a 100% interest in a 30,000 square meter Grade-A office building in central
Dublin, Ireland.

Gurston Office Asset

In April 2022, BEPIF acquired a 100% interest in a 29,000 square meter Grade-A office in Birmingham, United
Kingdom.

lll. BEPIF FEEDER SICAV FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital activity

BEPIF Feeder SICAV has received subscriptions for its shares of €434.3m. There have been no Redemption Requests
in the period.

Net Asset Value

BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s Net Asset Value is calculated monthly by the Central Administration under the oversight of
the AIFM, and in each case with the support of the Investment Manager. The AIFM is responsible for the proper
and independent valuation of the assets of BEPIF Feeder SICAV.

The valuation of BEPIF Feeder SICAV is determined in accordance with the Valuation Policy of the AIFM and the
Prospectus. A summary of the valuation methodology can be found in note 4c to the financial statements.
Shareholders should refer to the Prospectus for full details.

The Net Asset Value under the Valuation Policy differs to the IFRS measure of amounts attributable to shareholders
in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. This is due to differing recognition of organisational and
offering expenses. The Investment Manager has agreed to advance all such expenses for BEPIF until 30 September
2022. At which point these expenses will be reimbursed to the Investment Manager rateably over the next 60
months. These expenses are not reflected in the Net Asset Value until they are reimbursed. Whereas, under IFRS
these expenses are recognised when the associated services are provided. A reconciliation is provided in note 2a to
the financial statements.

Since launch the share prices of BEPIF Feeder SICAV have grown by €0.69 (6.9%) and €0.67 (6.7%) for Class | and
Class A shares respectively. This growth is driven by revaluation gains on real estate investments offset by fund
expenses.
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No distributions were declared for the period.

Class I, Class I, Class Ap Class A, Total

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Subscriptions ... ... 64,023 77,042 182,777 110,507 434,349
Redemptions ....... ... .. .. i . — — — — —
Appreciation forthe period ........... ... ... ... ... ... 3,127 3,624 8,710 5,069 20,530
NetAssetValue ......... ... ... . .. 67,150 80,666 191,487 115,576 454,879
Openingshareprice (€) .......... .. ... 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Closing shareprice (€) ........ ... ... 10.69 10.69 10.67 10.67
Returnfortheperiod ........... ... ... ... ... ........ 6.9% 6.9% 6.7% 6.7%
Expenses

The AIFM and Investment Manager are entitled to payment of a management fee (the “Management Fee”)
payable by BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP (without duplication) equal to in aggregate 1.25% of BEPIF
Feeder SICAV’s Net Asset Value per annum payable monthly, before giving effect to any accruals for the
Management Fee, the Servicing Fee, the Performance Participation Allocation, redemptions for that month and
any distributions. The AIFM and Investment Manager have agreed to waive the Management Fee for the first six
months since BEPIF accepted its first subscriptions (to 31 March 2022).

Blackstone European Property Income Fund Associates LP is allocated a performance participation (the
“Performance Participation Allocation”) equal to 12.5% of the Total Return of BEPIF subject to a 5% annual Hurdle
Amount and a High Water Mark with 100% Catch-Up (each term as defined in the Prospectus), crystalizing on 30
June each year (subject to pro-rating for partial years). Based on performance to 31 December 2021 a Performance
Participation Allocation of €3.0m has been included within BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s share of revaluation gains on
investments.

Class A Shares bear a servicing fee (“Servicing Fee”) payable to financial intermediaries in an amount equal (on an
annualized basis) to 0.75% of the Net Asset Value of such Class of Shares (before deducting the Servicing Fee for
that month and before giving effect to any redemptions or distributions for that month) as of the last day of each
month.

Leverage

BEPIF Feeder SICAV may utilize leverage, incur indebtedness and provide other credit support for any purpose,
including to fund all or a portion of the capital necessary for an Investment. BEPIF Feeder SICAV will not incur
indebtedness, directly or indirectly, that would cause the Leverage Ratio to be in excess of 55% (the “Leverage
Limit”); provided that no remedial action will be required if the Leverage Limit is exceeded for any reason other
than the incurrence of an increase in indebtedness (including the exercise of rights attached to an Investment).
BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s proportionate interest in the leverage of BPPE will be included in the calculation of the
Leverage Limit. The Leverage Limit may be exceeded on a temporary basis to satisfy short-term liquidity needs,
refinance existing borrowings or for other obligations.

As at 31 December 2021, BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s Leverage Ratio was 54.2%.
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IV. PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Principal risks and Uncertainties

The purchase of shares in BEPIF Feeder SICAV entails a high degree of risk and is suitable for sophisticated investors
for whom an investment in BEPIF Feeder SICAV does not represent a complete investment programme, and who
fully understand BEPIF’s strategy, characteristics and risks, including the use of borrowings to leverage
Investments, and are capable of bearing the risk of an investment in BEPIF Feeder SICAV.

In addition to the risks and conflicts of interest detailed in Section XVII — “Risk Factors, Potential Conflicts of
Interest and Other Considerations” of the Prospectus, below please find additional notable risks for BEPIF Feeder
SICAV:

Russian Invasion of Ukraine

On 24 February 2022, Russian troops began a full-scale invasion of Ukraine and, as of the issuance date of this
Management Report, the countries remain in active armed conflict. Around the same time, the United States, the
United Kingdom, the European Union, and several other nations announced a broad array of new or expanded
sanctions, export controls, and other measures against Russia, Russia-backed separatist regions in Ukraine, and
certain banks, companies, government officials, and other individuals in Russia and Belarus. The ongoing conflict
and the rapidly evolving measures in response could be expected to have a negative impact on the economy and
business activity globally (including in the countries in which BEPIF invests), and therefore could adversely affect
the performance of BEPIF’'s investments. The severity and duration of the conflict and its impact on global
economic and market conditions are impossible to predict, and as a result, could present material uncertainty and
risk with respect to BEPIF and the performance of its investments and operations, and the ability of BEPIF to
achieve its investment objectives. Similar risks will exist to the extent that any portfolio entities, service providers,
vendors or certain other parties have material operations or assets in Russia, Ukraine, Belarus, or the immediate
surrounding areas.

Conflicts of Interest

Blackstone has implemented several processes in order to mitigate the effects of any potential conflicts of interest
and has established several committees to oversee any potential issues. In addition, BEPIF Feeder SICAV has a
board of directors including some non-affiliated directors. That board, including those non-affiliated directors,
oversees BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s activities and any potential conflicts of interest. Information walls (administered by
Blackstone’s Chief Legal Officer) exist to ensure there is no inappropriate flow of information between business
groups. Conflicts are considered at various committee meetings including the Blackstone Real Estate Investment
Committee, Valuation Committee, as well as the Global Firmwide Risks and Conflicts Committee which includes
representation from every Blackstone business group.

In the conduct of its business the AIFM’s policy is to identify, manage and where necessary prohibit any action or
transaction that may pose a conflict between the interests of the AIFM and BEPIF Feeder SICAV or its shareholders
and between the interests of one or more shareholders and the interests of one or more other shareholders. The
AIFM has implemented procedures designed to ensure that business activities involving a conflict which may harm
the interests of BEPIF Feeder SICAV or its shareholders are carried out with an appropriate level of independence
and that conflicts are resolved fairly.

During the period, BEPIF acquired several investments alongside other Blackstone Core+ real estate investment
funds (see note 13 to the financial statements for further details).

Risks and conflicts of interest are discussed in greater detail in Section XVII — “Risk Factors, Potential Conflicts of
Interest and Other Considerations” of the Prospectus.
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L-1821 Luxembourg
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L-1011 Luxembourg
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To the Board of Directors of

Blackstone European Property Income Fund SICAV
11-13, Boulevard de la Foire

L-1528 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D’ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Blackstone European Property Income Fund SICAV and
Blackstone European Property Income Fund (Master) FCP, together referred to as “the Group”, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in amounts attributable to shareholders, and cash flows for the period from 11 June
2021 to 31 December 2021, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from 11 June
2021 to 31 December 2021 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (Law of 23 July 2016)
and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the “Commission de Surveillance
du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg
by the CSSF are further described in the “Responsibilities of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” for the Audit of the
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the AIFMD required
disclosures (not fully included in this reporting), which are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the AIFMD required disclosures (not fully included in this reporting), if we conclude that the
information therein is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, we are required to communicate the matter to the Board
of Directors.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as the Board of
Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the “réviseur
d’entreprises agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of the “réviseur d’entreprises
agréé” to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our report of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé”. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

U

Christian van Dartel, Réviseur d’entreprises agréé

Partner

14 April 2022
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2021

Assets
Non-current assets

Investments atfairvalue ........ . ... . .

Current assets

Cashandcashequivalents ........ ... ... .. ... . . ...

Total assets . ...

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and otherpayables .......... ... ... . i,
Subscriptions receivedinadvance ............ ... e
Other liabilities . ... ..o e

Total liabilities excluding amounts attributable to shareholders

Amounts attributable to shareholders (IFRS)
Adjustment to IFRS to obtain Net Asset Value

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders
Attributable to holders of:

Classlpshares ... ... e
Classlyshares ... ..o e
Class Apshares . ... i e e
Class Apshares ... ..o e

Share price:

ClasS Iy oot
ClasS Ly ot
Class Ap o et
ClassS Ay v et

Notes

~

2021
€000

457,138

53,538
510,676

(941)
(52,939)
(9,405)

(63,285)
447,391
7,488

454,879

67,150
80,666
191,487
115,576

454,879

€

10.69
10.69
10.67
10.67

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 14 April 2022.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period 11 June 2021 to 31 December 2021

Notes

Revenue
Distributions from iINVesStMENtS . .. ... i

Expenses (excluding servicing fees)
Management fees . ... . . e 9
Other EXPENSES . oottt e 9

Group operating loss before change in fair value of investments . . .. .......................
Gain on change in fair value of investments . ......... ... . . . i e 4

Group profit before share class specificexpenses ... ....... ... ... ... ... . ... . ... ... ... ...
Profit attributable to minority investorsin BEPIFMaster FCP ... .......... ..o, 8

Profit attributable to shareholders before share class specificexpenses .. ...................
Finance cost: distributions payable toshareholders ... ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... . ...,
Servicingfee on Class A Shares ... .. i e 9

Profit attributable to shareholders (IFRS) . ......... ... ... . . i,
Adjustment to IFRS to obtain appreciation of Net AssetValue ... ....... ... ... ... ... ....... 2a
Appreciationof Net Asset Value . . ... ... ... i e e

Attributable to holders of:
Class Iy Shares . ..o
Class [y shares . ... e
Class Ap Shares . ...
Class A Shares . .o

There are no items of other comprehensive income for the period

2021
€000

(503)
(503)

(503)
14,108

13,605
(105)

13,500

_(as8)
13,002
7488
20530

3,127
3,624
8,710
5,069

20,530
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Amounts Attributable to Shareholders
For the period 11 June 2021 to 31 December 2021

Share class Total
Class I, Class I, Class Ap Class A,
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Balanceasat11June 2021 ....... ... ... ... — — — — —
Contributions and redemptions by shareholders
Issueofshares . ...... .o 64,023 77,042 182,777 110,507 434,349
Result for financial period
Profit attributable to shareholders before share class specific
EXP NS S .\ttt e 2,022 2,296 5,847 3,335 13,500
Servicingfees ... ... .. — — (289) (169) (458)
Distributions . ... ... .. ... . . — — — — —
Balance as at 31 December 2021 (IFRS) .. ................. 66,045 79,338 188,335 113,673 447,391
Adjustment to IFRS to obtain Net Asset Value .............. 1,105 1,328 3,152 1,903 7,488
Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders . . ............ 67,150 80,666 191,487 115,576 454,879

A reconciliation of the number of shares and share price per share class is included in note 10.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the period 11 June 2021 to 31 December 2021

2021
€000
Cash flows from operating activities
EXPENSES PaId . .ot (20)
Distributions paid . . ... . e —
Net cash used in operating activities . ............ ... .. . . . . . . . (20)
Cash flows from investing activities
Contributions paid to JOINt VENTUIES . ... .. . i e e e e (443,030)
Net cash used in investing activities . ........... ... .. . . . . . e (443,030)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash flows with shareholders
Proceeds forissue of shares . ... ... i 487,288
Cash flows with minority investors in BEPIF Master FCP
Proceeds forissue Of UNits . ... .o i 9,300
Net cash from financing activities . ... ....... ... ... . . . . . . . . 496,588
Netincreaseincashand cashequivalents ... ....... ... ... .. ... . . . . . . . . . i 53,538
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period . ........ ... ... . . i i —
Cash and cash equivalents attheend of theperiod ...... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ........... 53,538
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Schedule of Investments
As at 31 December 2021

Category / name of investment

Direct real estate investments

LOGISEICS . v ot
Alaska Logistics Portfolio . .....................
Coldplay Logistics Portfolio . ...................
Evergreen Logistics Portfolio...................

Rose Logistics Asset .. ...

DataCentre ......... ... . ..
HarbourExchange ....... ... ... ... ... .. .. ..

Investments through BPPE®) . ... ... ... ... ... ......

Total direct real estate (including BPPE) .............

Real estate debt investments

Bilateralloans .............c .

Total Investments® . ............................

Gross Asset

Ownership() Country Cost basis(?) Value().(2)
€000 €000
1,001,046 1,026,451
16% UK
90% Germany
90% Poland, UK,
Germany,
Spain,
Czech
Republic
100% Netherlands
234,857 238,754
100% UK
1,235,903 1,265,205
183,632 184,957
1,419,535 1,450,162
94,288 94,288
1,513,823 1,544,450

(1) Ownership, cost basis and Gross Asset Value are totals for BEPIF as a whole. As at 31 December 2021, BEPIF
Feeder SICAV had an 85% look-through interest in these investments.

(2) Gross Asset Value is measured as the fair value of (i) real estate investments at BEPIF’s share, plus (ii) real
estate debt investments. “Real estate investments” is comprised of BEPIF's majority-controlled property
investments, BEPIF’s look-through share of property investments held by BPPE and equity in minority

investments.

(3) Investments through BPPE represent BEPIF’s pro rata share of the Gross Asset Value of real estate investments
of BPPE. The cost of the units acquired in BPPE is €100.0m with a fair value of €101.7m.

(4) For a reconciliation of Gross Asset Value of Investments to the valuation of investments in the Consolidated

Statement of Financial Position see note 4a.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Corporate information and principal activities

Blackstone European Property Income Fund SICAV (“BEPIF Feeder SICAV”) is a multi-compartment Luxembourg
investment company with variable capital (société d’investissement a capital variable), incorporated on 11 June
2021, and governed by Part Il of the 2010 Law. The registered address of BEPIF Feeder SICAV is 11-13, Boulevard de
la Foire L-1528, Luxembourg.

BEPIF Feeder SICAV is a vehicle for investment into BEPIF. BEPIF is a real estate investment programme operated
through several entities and the term “BEPIF” is used throughout these financial statements to refer to the
programme as a whole. The primary vehicles for investors to subscribe to BEPIF are BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF
Master FCP (as defined below).

BEPIF invests primarily in substantially stabilized, income-generating European real estate, and to a lesser extent, in
real estate related debt. BEPIF seeks to bring Blackstone’s leading institutional-quality European real estate
investment platform primarily to income-focused individual investors. Further details on the investment objectives
and strategy can be found in the Management Report.

Corporate structure

Blackstone European Property Income Fund (Master) FCP (“BEPIF Master FCP”), a Luxembourg mutual fund (fonds
commun de placement) governed by Part Il of the 2010 Law is the master fund for BEPIF Feeder SICAV. As at
31 December 2021 BEPIF Feeder SICAV owned 98% of the units (by value) issued by BEPIF Master FCP. BEPIF
Feeder SICAV together with BEPIF Master FCP is referred to as the “Group”.

BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP are alternative investment funds under the Amended law of 12 July 2013
relating to Alternative Investment Fund Managers (the “2013 Law”). Blackstone Europe Fund Management S.a r.l.
(the “AIFM”), has been appointed as alternative investment fund manager under the 2013 Law in order to perform
the investment management (including both portfolio and risk management), oversight, valuation and certain
other functions. The AIFM delegated its portfolio management function to Blackstone Property Advisors, L.P. (the
“Investment Manager”). The Investment Manager has discretion to make investments on behalf of BEPIF Feeder
SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP.

BEPIF Master FCP makes investment in real estate alongside a Parallel Vehicle, Blackstone European Property
Income Fund S.L.P. (“Blackstone Bepimmo”), an investment vehicle also managed by the Investment Manager.
Collectively BEPIF Feeder SICAV, BEPIF Master FCP and Blackstone Bepimmo are referred to as “the Funds”. BEPIF
(Aggregator) SCSp (“BEPIF Aggregator”), a Luxembourg special limited partnership (société en commandite
spéciale), is a vehicle incorporated to indirectly hold the investments of the Funds.

2. Group accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements are for the period 11 June 2021, the date of incorporation of BEPIF Feeder
SICAV, until 31 December 2021. The consolidated financial statements consolidate the results of BEPIF Feeder
SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP. BEPIF Feeder SICAV does not prepare separate financial statements. Shareholders can
obtain the annual report of BEPIF Master FCP on request to the AIFM.

BEPIF Feeder SICAV has applied the following accounting policies throughout the financial period. Consistent
accounting policies have been applied to the results of BEPIF Master FCP and BEPIF Aggregator. For ease of
reference, significant accounting policies that are applicable only to investments held via BEPIF Aggregator are
included in note 3.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

a) Basis of accounting

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”). The Group has not early adopted any IFRS standards and
there are no new or amended standards that are expected to have a material impact on the Group.

The functional and presentational currency is the euro. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for investments in joint ventures which are measured at fair value.

As further described in note 2d, the Group has no financial instruments classified as equity. The Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position presents financial liabilities due to shareholders as Amounts attributable to
shareholders. A Consolidated Statement of Changes in Amounts Attributable to Shareholders is presented in lieu of
a statement of changes in equity.

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders

BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s Net Asset Value is determined monthly in accordance with the Valuation Policy (being the
policies and procedures set by the AIFM to determine the Net Asset Value) and sets the price at which shares in
BEPIF Feeder SICAV are traded. The Valuation Policy is aligned with the recognition and measurement
requirements of IFRS except for the recognition of organisational and offering expenses (see note 12). Such
expenses are recognised as a deduction to Net Asset Value only when they are reimbursed to the Investment
Manager whereas under IFRS such expenses are recognised when the associated services are provided. The
amounts attributable to shareholders (IFRS) in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is therefore lower
than the Net Asset Value.

2021

Notes €000
Amounts attributable to shareholders (IFRS) ..................... 447,391

Organisational and offering expenses adjustments:

Group’s share of liability recognised by BEPIF Aggregator ....... 4a 7,649
Amount attributable to minority investors in BEPIF Master FCP . . (161)
7,488
Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders .. .................. 454,879

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. In the opinion of the Directors there are
no material uncertainties in reaching this conclusion. The Investment Manager has prepared liquidity forecasts
which show that, for at least the next 12 months, BEPIF Feeder SICAV will have sufficient funds to meet its
obligations to third parties as they fall due. Payments to shareholders as distributions or redemptions of shares are
made in accordance with the Articles of BEPIF Feeder SICAV and are summarised in note 10.

b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of BEPIF Feeder SICAV and entities it
controlled in the reporting period. Control is achieved through exposure to, or rights to, variable returns from
involvement with the investee and the ability to affect those returns through power over the investee. BEPIF

Feeder SICAV’s only subsidiary is BEPIF Master FCP.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Significant accounting judgement - Classification of BEPIF Master FCP as a subsidiary

BEPIF Feeder SICAV has a greater than 50% share of the units issued by BEPIF Master FCP. The AIFM has rights of
control over the management of BEPIF Master FCP, including appointing the Investment Manager. However, the
AIFM does not have any significant economic interest in BEPIF Master FCP and therefore the AIFM is considered
the agent of BEPIF Feeder SICAV in its relationship with BEPIF Master FCP. Therefore, the Directors conclude BEPIF
Feeder SICAV has ‘control’, as defined under IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements, over BEPIF Master FCP and
classifies its investment as a subsidiary.

The impact of this judgement is that BEPIF Feeder SICAV prepares financial statements which consolidate the
financial position and results of BEPIF Master FCP, as opposed to preparing separate financial statements including
BEPIF Master FCP as an investment in the statement of financial position.

c) Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a separate vehicle in which an investor exercises joint control with one or more other parties. The
Group’s only joint venture is BEPIF Aggregator.

The Group has taken the election available, under IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, for entities
similar to mutual funds to hold investments in joint ventures at fair value. Gains/losses on changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss. Determination of fair value represents an area of significant estimation uncertainty.
Methods and assumptions adopted are described in note 4c.

Distribution income from joint ventures is recognised as revenue.
Significant accounting judgement - Classification of BEPIF Aggregator as a joint venture

Blackstone European Property Income Fund Associates (Lux) S.a r.l. (the “General Partner”) is appointed as general
partner to BEPIF Aggregator. The renumeration of the General Partner is not linked to the profitability of BEPIF
Aggregator and therefore the General Partner is considered an agent of the limited partners. Under the Limited
Partnership Agreement (“the LPA”), the voting rights of the Limited Partners are not proportional to their interests.
Unanimous consent of limited partners is required for certain reserved matters, including replacement of the
General Partner. Therefore, the Directors conclude that, despite owning more than 50% of the issued partners’
capital, BEPIF Master FCP does not ‘control’ BEPIF Aggregator as defined under IFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements and that the investment in BEPIF Aggregator is a joint venture.

The impact of this judgement is that the investment in BEPIF Aggregator is presented as a single line in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as opposed to a line-by-line consolidation of the results if BEPIF
Aggregator were considered a subsidiary.

d) Financial instruments

Financial assets

Other than the investment in joint ventures, all the Group’s financial assets are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and cash held by the Depositary (as defined in note 11) from
subscriptions received in advance (note 2e).
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities include amounts due to shareholders,
trade and other payables, management fees and other liabilities (being amounts due to minority investors in BEPIF
Master FCP).

Trade and other payables, including management fees, are initially recognised at fair value less any transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the liability and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Where payment terms are deferred the future cash flows are discounted at a market rate of
interest.

Amounts attributable to shareholders and amounts attributable to minority investors in BEPIF Master FCP are
initially recognised at fair value, which is taken to be the proceeds received for the shares/units issued and are
subsequently recognised at the value of the redemption amount as if the shares/units were redeemed at the
period end.

Liabilities to settle redemptions of shares are transferred to a separate liability in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position at the redemption date (see note 10). Distributions are recognised as a separate liability when
they are declared.

Significant accounting judgement - Classification of shareholders’ investment into BEPIF Feeder SICAV as a financial
liability

Shareholders have the right to request a redemption of their investment in BEPIF Feeder SICAV. Payment of
redemptions is subject to the redemption caps as described in BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s Prospectus and may be
deferred in certain circumstances (redemption terms are summarised in note 10). However, the contractual
obligation to redeem is not extinguished and hence there is a contractual obligation to deliver cash to
shareholders. Therefore, shareholders’ investments in BEPIF Feeder SICAV are classified as financial liabilities.

The impact of this judgement is that distributions are presented as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Significant accounting judgement - Classification of unitholders’ investment into BEPIF Master FCP as a financial
liability

BEPIF Master FCP has analogous redemption rights and terms for its unitholders as BEPIF Feeder SICAV has for its
shareholders. Therefore, amounts due to BEPIF Master FCP unitholders included in BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are also classified as financial liabilities.

The impact of this judgement is that amounts due to minority investors in BEPIF Master FCP are presented as a
liability within the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as opposed to a non-controlling interest within
equity.

The impact of the two judgements above is that the Group has no equity instruments. Therefore a consolidated
statement of changes in equity is replaced by the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Amounts Attributable to
Shareholders.

e) Subscriptions received in advance

Subscriptions received in advance represent amounts received for subscriptions prior to the trade date when
shares in BEPIF Feeder SICAV are issued. The cash from subscriptions is included in cash and cash equivalents along
with an offsetting liability until shares are issued.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

f) Revenue

The Group’s revenue comprises distributions from investments. Distributions are recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

g) Fees

Management, servicing and other administrative fees are recognised in profit or loss when the related services are
received.

h) Tax

The Group is not subject to any income taxes as defined in IAS 12 Income taxes. The Group is charged Luxembourg
subscription tax (see note 9) which is computed based on the net assets of BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master
FCP rather than their profit. The subscription tax charge is therefore presented as an operating expense in profit or
loss.

i) Statement of Cash Flows

The Group has adopted the direct presentation method for its Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. Distributions
to shareholders are presented as an operating cash flow as these are funded from operational cash flows from the
Group’s investments.

3. Accounting policies applicable to Investments

The Group has applied the following accounting policies to its investments in real estate held through BEPIF
Aggregator.

a) Basis of accounting

BEPIF Aggregator’s financial results are for the period 28 June 2021, the date of formation, until 31 December
2021. Consolidated financial information for the group headed by BEPIF Aggregator has been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except that investment properties, equity investments, derivative financial instruments and
certain debt investments are measured at fair value.

Significant accounting judgement—Consolidation

The Directors have concluded that BEPIF Aggregator does not qualify as an investment entity under IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements. BEPIF’s investment strategy is to acquire substantially stabilized, income-
generating European real estate, and therefore investment decisions are based on a range of factors beyond fair
value, including an investment’s income and cash generation. BEPIF Aggregator therefore prepares consolidated
financial statements using the principles outlined below.

b) Asset acquisitions and business combinations

The optional concentration test in IFRS 3 Business Combinations is used to assess whether an acquisition is a
business combination. Under the concentration test, when substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single asset (or a group of similar assets), the transaction is accounted for as an asset
acquisition. A threshold of 90% is considered to represent ‘substantially all’. Where an acquisition does not satisfy
the concentration test and the acquired set of activities meets the definition of a business the acquisition method
of accounting is applied.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Commonly, investment properties are acquired via the purchase of the legal entity which holds the properties,
these are not business combinations as either the concentration test is met, or processes acquired (as defined in
IFRS 3) are insignificant to the acquisition as a whole.

All acquisitions in the current period were considered asset acquisitions and there were no significant judgements
made in reaching that conclusion.

Accounting for asset acquisitions

For asset acquisitions, the consideration is allocated: first to any assets or liabilities which IFRS requires be initially
recognised at a value other than cost, allocating those assets/liabilities that value; and secondly to the remaining
assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values as at the date of acquisition. Transaction costs are
considered primarily to relate to the investment property acquired and are capitalised solely into the property.
Asset acquisitions do not give rise to goodwill.

When a transaction that involves acquiring less than 100% of an entity is accounted for as an asset acquisition, the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree is recognised at the proportionate share of the acquired assets and
liabilities.

c) Investment properties

Property that is owned, or held under a lease, to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both, and that is
not owner occupied, is classified as investment property. Investment property also includes property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Acquisition of investment property is recognised when the associated purchase contract is completed and legal
title transferred. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and,
where applicable, borrowing costs. If payment for an investment property is deferred, its cost is the cash price
equivalent. The difference between this amount and the total payments is recognised as a finance expense over
the deferral period. Rent guarantees and top-ups paid by a vendor to compensate for vacant space or rent-free
periods are treated as part of the cost of the property acquired and offset against the initial purchase
consideration. Contingent consideration paid to the vendor, for example, dependent on future occupancy or
performance of the property, is recognised as part of the cost of the property when the associated liability is
recognised.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value with changes recognised in profit or loss. Fair
value is on the basis of a sale of the investment property as opposed to sale of the legal entity which owns the
property. The fair value of investment property includes the future cash benefit of any lease incentives granted to
tenants or fixed/minimum rental uplifts. Therefore, the corresponding entry upon recognising such rental income is
made to investment property. The fair value of any leasehold properties is adjusted by the carrying amount of the
separately recognised lease liability.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to a property’s carrying amount only when it is probable there will be future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the cost of the replacement is included in the carrying
amount of the property, and the fair value is reassessed. Fees associated with leasing investment property are
included in the carrying amount of the related investment property and subsequently amortised over the lease
term.

Investment properties are derecognised when the associated sale contract is completed and legal title transfers to
the purchaser.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

d) Financial instruments

Classification

Financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e fair value through profit and loss (“FVPL");
e fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or
e amortised cost.

Other than amounts due to partners (see note 3e), the accounting policies for material categories of financial
instruments are as follows:

i) Equity investments

All equity investments, including the investment in BPPE (as defined in note 4b.l), are classified as FVPL financial
assets. Investments are initially recognised at fair value on the trade date. Any transaction costs are expensed in
profit or loss on initial recognition.

Dividends from equity investments are recognised as revenue when the right to receive payments is established.
ii) Debt investments

The classification of debt investments depends on the business model for that investment. Investments are only
reclassified if the business model for managing those assets changes.

Debt held at amortised cost

Typically such investments are non-traded bilateral loans. The debt is held for collection of contractual cash flows
and those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Amortised cost debt investments are
initially recognised at fair value on the trade date. Any transaction costs are added to the cost of the asset.

Interest income is included in revenue using the effective interest rate method. Arrangement fees paid by the
borrower are considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of the loan and recognised as a component
of interest income.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in profit or loss.

iii) Trade receivables

Trade receivables, primarily rents due from tenants, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

A provision is included for expected credit losses. The simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments is applied, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivable. The expected loss is based on experience of payment profiles in the real estate sectors and jurisdictions
in which BEPIF invests. Specific adjustments are made for individual tenants where there is a known increased risk
of default. Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iv) Rental guarantees

A rental guarantee provided by the seller of an investment property is recognised as a financial asset when the
associated investment property is recognised. Rental guarantees are classified as FVPL financial assets hence gains
or losses on changes in fair value ire recognised in profit or loss.

v) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, short term deposits, other highly liquid investments with original
maturities of less than three months that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash with insignificant risk
of change in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

vi) Derivatives

Derivative financial assets/liabilities primarily comprise instruments to manage foreign currency exchange risk or
interest rate risk and are classified as FVPL financial assets/liabilities.

Recognition of a derivative takes place when the legal contract is entered. Derivatives are measured initially and
subsequently at fair value. Any transaction costs are recognised in net finance expenses in profit or loss. Hedge
accounting is not applied. Gains or losses on changes in fair value are recognised in net finance expenses in profit
or loss.

vii) Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

When calculating the effective interest rate, future cash flows are estimated over the expected life of the loan. The
expected life of the loan considers all contractual terms including extension options and the ability to repay the
loan in advance of contractual maturity.

When fees are paid to enter a loan facility which is not initially utilised, those fees are recognised as transaction
costs to the extent that it is probable that the facility will be drawn down in the future. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. If it is not probable that the facility will be drawn down, the fee is recognised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the life of the facility.

Interest expense is recognised within net finance expenses in profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the period end, or when the liability relates to an asset or disposal group held
for sale (see note 3i).

viii) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently are measured at amortised cost.
The fair value of a non-interest-bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the liability
is less than one year, discounting is omitted.

Deposits from tenants may be obtained as a collateral for rent payments, or the condition of the property on lease
expiry. The liability to repay the deposit is recognised initially at fair value, taken to be the deposit received, and
subsequently at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e) Amounts due to partners
Significant accounting judgement — Classification of amounts due to partners

As described further below, for all partners’ balances BEPIF Aggregator has a contractual obligation to deliver cash,
as defined in IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation, and therefore all partners’ balances are classified as
financial liabilities as opposed to equity instruments. The obligation arises, in accordance with the LPA, per class of
partner as follows:

e Limited Partners have a right to withdraw their interests for cash.

e Special Limited Partner interest — Blackstone European Property Income Fund Associates L.P. (the “Special
Limited Partner”) has the right to receive a Performance Participation Allocation which may be settled in
cash at the option of the Special Limited Partner.

e General Partner — earns a minimum level of profit allocation payable in cash.

Given this, BEPIF Aggregator itself has no equity. The only equity arises from non-controlling interests within
subsidiaries of BEPIF Aggregator.

i) Amounts due to limited partners

Amounts due to limited partners are initially recognised at cost, being the cash received from a limited partner.
Subsequently, such amounts are recognised at amortised cost and are remeasured to the expected cash that will
be required to settle the liability. This is taken as the amount that would be payable if the Limited Partners
withdrew their interests and settled at the residual net assets of BEPIF Aggregator (under IFRS) after deducting all
other liabilities.

Repayments of Limited Partners’ interests are effective at the end of each month and the limited partner ceases to
benefit from the allocation of profits of BEPIF Aggregator on a pro rata basis from that date. Any liability to repay
Limited Partner interests is presented separately in BEPIF Aggregator’s Statement of Financial Position until
settlement.

Distributions are presented as an expense in profit or loss and are recognised as a separate liability to Amounts
attributable to limited partners when declared.

ii) Amounts due to Special Limited Partner

In accordance with the LPA, the Special Limited Partner is entitled to receive a Performance Participation Allocation
of the Total Return of BEPIF Aggregator (see note 12 for further details). The Special Limited Partner can elect to
have the performance participation allocation settled in cash, partners’ capital in BEPIF Aggregator or as an
investment in a Fund (as defined in note 4a).

The performance participation allocation due to the Special Limited Partner is calculated monthly against the
required performance conditions explained in note 12. Where that calculation indicates the performance
conditions have been achieved (based on performance up to the measurement date only), a performance
participation allocation is accrued at the amount attributable to the Special Limited Partner were the performance
participation allocation to crystalise at the measurement date.

The change in performance allocation is included in profit or loss, with an expense representing an increase in the
amount due to the Special Limited Partner.

40



Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

f) Leases
As the lessee
The only recognised lease liabilities relate to leases of investment property.

At initial recognition, lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be readily determined, or, if
not, the incremental borrowing rate for similar assets. Variable lease payments that depend on an index, such as
an inflation index, are included in the lease liability based on the current index. Variable lease payments that
depend on rent received from the property are not included in the lease liability and are instead recognised in
profit or loss on an accrual basis.

Lease payments are allocated between repayment of principal and finance expense so as to produce a constant
rate of interest over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured when variable lease payments that depend on
an index are updated.

As the lessor

All existing leases of investment property are considered operating leases as the lease terms do not substantially
transfer the risks and rewards of ownership to the tenant.

Significant accounting judgement — classification of leases as operating leases

For several leases there are break clauses, at the option of the tenant, which if not exercised would generate
additional rental income over the extended lease term such that the lease would be classified as a finance lease.
The breaks are assessed as being sufficiently far in the future (at least 15 years) that it cannot be reasonably certain
the break will not be exercised. The impact of this judgement is that property with a yearend value of €267.7m is
classified as investment property and held at fair value as opposed to a finance lease receivable held at the net
investment in the lease amortised using the effective interest rate method.

g) Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from investment properties

Revenue from investment properties includes rental income, service charge income, property management
charges, and other property related income.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Included in the
straight-line basis are the effects of future fixed or minimum uplifts in rent and any incentives provided to tenants
(such as rent-free periods or capital contributions). Any contingent rental uplifts, including rent reviews, are
excluded until the amounts are known.

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease. Tenant break clauses are assumed to be exercised unless
it is reasonably certain at inception of the lease, or acquisition of the property, that the break will not be exercised.
Considerations in making this assessment are: the length of time until the break date, any difference between the
contract terms and the market terms, any significant investments made by the lessee in the property, costs relating
to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the lessee’s operations. This
judgement is not reassessed unless there is a change in the non-cancellable period of the lease.

Revenue from service charges is recognised in the accounting period in which the corresponding services are
provided to the tenant.
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ii) Revenue from equity investments

Revenue comprises distribution income from its investment in BPPE and investments in other equity instruments.
Distribution income is recognised when the right to receive a payment is established.

i) Interest income on debt instruments

Interest income on debt instruments includes interest, exit fees and arrangement fees earned. Interest is
recognised on a time-proportion basis, using the effective interest method. When calculating the effective interest
rate, estimated cash flows consider all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, pre-payment
options) but do not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and any other premiums or discounts.

h) Current and deferred income taxes

Income tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when the tax relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income or equity — in which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
equity.

Current tax

The current tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws in the countries where BEPIF operates that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the period end. Uncertain tax positions are periodically evaluated and provisions
established where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for any temporary differences arising at initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, has no impact on either
accounting nor taxable profits. This typically arises when investment property is acquired via the purchase of
shares in an entity which owns property but under IFRS the acquisition is assessed to be an asset acquisition rather
than a business combination (see note 3b).

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
yearend date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax balance is realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities; typically only when the asset and liability would be payable to the same tax
authority and/or arise in the same taxable entity.

Additional considerations for investment property

IFRS requires investment property to be valued assuming a sale of the property rather than a sale of the legal entity
which owns the property. Deferred tax on investment property recognised uses a consistent assumption of an
asset sale. Should the legal entity owning the property be disposed then the actual current income tax payable may

be significantly different.
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Additional considerations for subsidiaries

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by BEPIF and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

i) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. When an investment
property held for sale is expected to be sold via an asset sale, the property is held at fair value. When the entity
which owns the property is expected to be sold, the disposal group, which includes the investment property and
the entity’s other assets and liabilities, is held at the lower of its carrying amount (including a revaluation of the
property) and fair value less costs to sell. Liabilities, such as loans and borrowings, expected or required to be
settled as part of the disposal are classified separately as current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

j) Consolidated statement of cash flows of BEPIF Aggregator

Cash flows from operating activities are determined using the indirect method.

Interest paid on loans and borrowings is presented within financing cash flows.

The acquisitions of investment properties, investments in BPPE, investments in equity instruments and investments
in debt instruments are disclosed as cash flows from investing activities because this most appropriately reflects
the Group’s business activities. When investment property is acquired via acquisition of the legal entity that owns
the property and that acquisition is classified, under IFRS, as an asset acquisition, the investing cash flow is
presented as Acquisition of investment property rather than Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash. This is
considered to better reflect the substance of the acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents acquired as part of a disposal group with an intention to resell is excluded from the cash
flow statement.

4. Investments at fair value

4a Reconciliation of investments at fair value

BEPIF Aggregator is the vehicle through which the Funds makes their real estate related investments. Under IFRS,
BEPIF Aggregator is classified as a joint venture.

The Group, via BEPIF Master FCP, became a limited partner of BEPIF Aggregator at its formation on 28 June 2021.
The relative value of BEPIF Master FCP’s and Blackstone Bepimmo’s interest in BEPIF Aggregator varies dependent
on the level of subscriptions and redemptions of end investors in each Fund. At 31 December 2021, BEPIF Master
FCP had an effective 87% share of BEPIF Aggregator. After allocations to minority investors in BEPIF Master FCP,
BEPIF Feeder SICAV has an effective interest of 85% in BEPIF Aggregator.
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BEPIF
Aggregator
€000

Fairvalueasat11June2021 ........ ... iiiiinnnnnn.
Capital contributions . ........... ... ... .. . 443,030
Distributionsreceived . ........ ... . i —

Gainon changeinfairvalue®™ . .......................... 14,108

Fair value as at 31 December 2021 (IFRS) .................
Adjustment to obtain Net Asset Value (note2a) ............

Valuation in accordance with the Valuation Policy

(1) Comprises a gain of €21.7m under the Valuation Policy and a loss of €7.6m for accrued organisation and

offering expenses under IFRS.

Reconciliation to the Schedule of Investments

Schedule of Investments: BEPIF’s Gross Asset Value

Net leverage in Investments® .. ... ... ...................
Other net working capital ............. ... ... ... ......

Less amount attributable to Blackstone Bepimmo ..........

Valuation in accordance with the Valuation Policy

(1) Net leverage in Investments includes BEPIF’s share of consolidated property-level and entity-level debt net of
cash, excluding indebtedness incurred in connection with funding a deposit. It includes the look-through net
leverage of BEPIF’s investments in BPPE. Net leverage in Investments does not include cash held by the Group

and therefore differs to Aggregate Net Leverage as defined by the Prospectus.
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4b Summary financial information of joint venture investments

The following financial information summarises the consolidated financial results of the group headed by BEPIF

Aggregator prepared under IFRS and the Group’s accounting policies in note 3.

BEPIF Aggregator Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Notes

Non-current assets

Investment property .......... e
Investmentin BPPE . ... ... .. . . . .
Investment in other equity instruments ...................
Investment in debt instruments at amortisedcost ..........

Current assets

Cashand cashequivalents .............................
Trade and otherreceivables . ............... ... .. ... ....
Deposits forinvestments ......... .. ... i

Assets classified asheldforsale ......................... Il
Totalcurrentassets .................coiiiiiiinin..
Totalassets . ...t

Non-current liabilities

Loansand borrowings ......... ... i 1]
Lease liabilities ....... ... .

Trade and otherpayables ........... ... ... . ... ... ......
Deferred tax liabilities .......... ... i

Current liabilities

Loansand borrowings . .......... ... .. . i 1}
Lease liabilities ..........
Derivative financial liabilities ...........................

Trade and otherpayables ........... ... ... . ... ... ......
Incometaxpayable ...... ... ... ... .
Performance participation allocation payable ..............

Liabilities classified as held forsale .. ..................... I
Total current liabilities . .............. ... ... ... ......
Total liabilities excluding amounts attributable to partners ..
Net assets before amounts attributable to partners ........

Amounts attributable to partners

General Partner . ... ... e
Special Limited Partner ......... ... . . i
BEPIFMaster FCP . ... i \%
Blackstone Bepimmo . ......... ... i

Non-controllinginterest ......... ... . ... ... oo,
Amounts attributable to partners plus equity .............

2021
€000

910,721
101,684
181,245

94,363

1,288,013

60,223
15,007

39,200

114,430

207,003

321,433

1,609,446

(578,686)
(9,944)
(11,724)
(6,884)

(607,238)

(281,256)
(409)
(514)

(65,946)
(40)
(3,147)

(351,312)

(130,625)

(481,937)
(1,089,175)
520,271

440
430,971
64,416

495,827

24,444

_ 520271
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BEPIF Aggregator Consolidated Income Statement

Revenue

Rentalincome .........................
Service chargeincome ..................
Distribution income from equity investments
Interest income from debt investments . . . ..

Operating expenses
Property related expenses ...........
Organisational and offering expenses ..
Other administrative expenses .. ......

Gains/(losses) from change in fair value of
Investment property ................
Investmentin BPPE .................
Other equity investments . ...........

Operating profit/(loss) ..................
Net finance expenses ...................

Profit/(loss) before tax and amounts attributable to

partners ............ . .. ... . ...
Incometax...........c.. i,

Profit/(loss) before allocations to partners . .
Performance participation allocation ... ....
General Partner’sshare .................

Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations . . . . ..

Loss from discontinued operations
Revenue: rentalincome .............
Revaluation gain on investment property
Othernetlossitems ................
Deferred tax expenses ..............

Profit/(loss) for the period .. .............

Attributable to:

BEPIF Master FCP . ......... ... .. ......
Blackstone Bepimmo ...................
Special Limited Partner ..................
Non-controllinginterest .................

28 June to
31 December
2021
Notes €000

\'% 2,477
\% 173
1,963

737

5,350

(272)
(8,791)
(1,684)

(10,747)

(11,441)
1,684
12,404

2,647

(2,750)
(5,419)

(8,169)
(6,214)

(14,383)
(3,147)
(9)
(17,539)

v 313
8,952

(2,008)

(11,213)

(3,956)
(21,495)

(15,879)

(5,481)
13

(148)

(21,495)
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BEPIF Aggregator Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Profit/(loss) forthe period ............. ... .. ..........
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation of foreign operations .........
Income tax relating to theseitems . .....................

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax . . ..
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period ........

Attributable to:

BEPIF Master FCP . ... ... e
Blackstone Bepimmo ............ ...
Special Limited Partner .......... ... ... i
Non-controllinginterest ............. ... ... ... ...,

28 June to

31 December

2021
€000

(21,495)

6,018
(710)

5,308
(16,187)

(12,059)
(4,162)
13
21

(16,187)

Appreciation under the Valuation Policy is allocated between limited partners on a monthly basis taking into
account the relative holdings of those partners at each subscription date. Adjustments to obtain the Net Asset
Value required under IFRS are allocated based on the relative holding of limited partners at the period end. Hence,

the relative share of Amounts attributable to Limited Partners is the same under IFRS and the Valuation Policy.
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BEPIF Aggregator Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

28 June to
31 December
2021
€000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations ... .. (17,539)
Adjustmentsfor: . ... ..
Performance Participation Allocation payable ............ 3,147
Amortisation of upfrontloanfees ...................... (75)
Net finance exXpenses . . ..ot 5,419
Realised foreign currency gain/(loss) .. .................. (23)
Incometaxpayable ....... ... .. ... i 6,214
(Gain)/loss from changes in fair value of investments ...... (2,647)

(5,504)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables ........ (15,007)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables .......... 35992
Cash flow fromoperations . .. ............. ... ... ...... 15,481
Interestpaid ... (194)
Tax Paid .o e =
Net cash from operating activities ..................... 15,287
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of investment properties, including deposits . . .. (902,972)
Acquisition of disposal group — discontinued operations . . .. (193,262)
Investmentin BPPE ........ ... ... ... . .. . ... .. (100,000)
Investment in other equity instruments ................. (165,994)
Investment in debt instruments ....................... (94,288)
Net cash used in investing activities . . . ................. (1,456,516)
Cash flows from financing activities
Contribution from Special Limited Partner ............... 427
Issuance of partnershipunits . .......... .. ... .. ... ... 511,608
Net cash from partners’ capital ........................ 512,035
Non-controlling interest contributions .................. 24,423
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling interest ........ 7,067
Net cash from non-controlling interests . ................ 31,490
Proceeds from loans and borrowings — continuing

operations . ... e 1,092,883
Proceeds from loans and borrowings — discontinued
operations ... .t e e 113,155

Repayments of loans and borrowings ................... (245,667)
Payment of loan arrangementfees ..................... (2,444)
Net cash from loans and borrowings . ................... 957,927
Net cash from financing activities ..................... 1,501,452
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .. .. 60,223

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period . .. —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period ... .... 60,223
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Notes to the BEPIF Aggregator consolidation

I. Investments in non-current assets

Investment in

Investment BPPE Other equity Debt at
property instruments amortised
cost
€000 €000 €000 €000
Balanceasat28June2021 ........... ... .. ... ..., — — — —
Acquisitions, including transaction costst) ... ......... 915,803 100,000 165,994 94,288
Net change in straight-line rent receivable ........... 134 — — —
Gain/(loss) on change in fairvalue® ................ (11,441) 1,684 12,404 —
Amortisationoffees ........... ... ... ... .. ... . ... — — — 75
Foreign currency translationgain . .................. 6,225 — 2,847 —
Balance as at 31 December2021 ................... 910,721 101,684 181,245 94,363

(1) Acquisitions includes transaction costs on investment property of €40.4m (including any real estate transfer
taxes paid. There were no material transaction costs on other investments.

(2) Comprises €30.1m of unrealised gains and €27.4m of unrealised losses. Included in unrealised losses are
€58.6m of losses related to the IFRS requirement to assume asset sales of real estate as opposed to the
Investment Manager’s own assessment of the likely exit strategy (see also reconciling item (1) of note 4b.1V).

During the period, investments in direct real estate have been made into the Coldplay Logistics Portfolio, Emerald
Logistics Portfolio, Rose Logistics Asset and Harbour Exchange. Details on ownership and location of the properties
can be found in the Schedule of Investments. Figures in the table above include the share of the investments held
by non-controlling interests. All investment properties are insured to at least their market value.

In November 2021, an investment was made into Blackstone Property Partners Europe (Lux) SCSp, the Luxembourg
limb of Blackstone Property Partners Europe, Blackstone’s flagship European Core+ real estate fund for institutional
investors (“BPPE”). The investment represents a 1.4% interest in BPPE.

The investment in other equity instruments represents a 16% investment in the Alaska Logistics Portfolio.

In November 2021, a €95m bilateral loan, with €0.7m of upfront fees, was provided to a subsidiary of a
pan-European logistics company.

Il. Assets and liabilities held for sale

Included in the Evergreen Logistics Portfolio were two Polish properties acquired with a view to subsequent resale.
Assets classified as held for sale includes investment property valued at €198.9m (historical cost of €189.9m,
including transaction costs of €3.5m). Liabilities classified as held for sale includes €113.2m of loans required to be
repaid on completion of the sale. At the date of issuance of these financial statements, the Investment Manager is
in negotiations with a prospective purchaser.
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Ill. Loans and borrowings

2021
€000
Non-current
Acquisition Facility ......... ... .. . . 581,025
Unamortised arrangementfees .......................... (2,339)
578,686
Current
Lineof Credit . ...t e e 272,800
Interestpayable ......... .. .. .. ... 1,389
Loans from non-controlling interests ...................... 7,067
281,256
Acquisition Facility included in liabilities held forsale ......... 113,155
Total loansand borrowings . ............................ 973,097

Blackstone Holdings Finance Co. L.L.C., a subsidiary of Blackstone Inc., has provided a €300m unsecured line of
credit (the “Line of Credit”). The facility can be drawn for any purpose in either Euros, Dollars or Pound Sterling.

A Senior Facility Agreement (the “Acquisition Facility”) has been agreed with a syndicate of lenders which can be
used to finance acquisitions of investments, up to a 57.5% loan-to-value, with each acquisition subject to approval
by the lenders. All of BEPIF’s investment property and debt investments at 31 December 2021 are secured under
this facility. The facility includes various financial and operational covenants which have been complied with
throughout the period and to the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements.

Key terms of the Line of Credit and Acquisition Facility are as follows:

Principal
outstanding
Type of loan / borrowing Interest rate Maturity date €000
Lineof Credit ............ .. ... .. ..... July 2022
EUR .. EURIBOR + 2.50%(2) 106,000
GBP .. SONIA +2.50% 166,800
272,800
Acquisition Facility ..................... October 20230
EUR ... e EURIBOR + 1.50%* 469,096
GBP .. SONIA + 1.50% 225,084
694,180

(1) 12-month extension option available with consent of the lender.

(2) 3M EURIBOR is subject to a 0% floor.

(3) Subject to a 12-month extension option.

(4) 3M EURIBOR is subject to a 0% floor. The margin will increase to 1.85% and 2.00% in year 2 and 3 of the facility,
respectively.
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IV. Amounts attributable to BEPIF Master FCP

The fair value of the Group’s interest in BEPIF Aggregator as reported in the Group’s Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position differs to its share of the Amounts attributable to partners in BEPIF Aggregator’s own
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. This difference arises due to differences in how IFRS requires certain
items to be measured in BEPIF Aggregator’s own financial results as opposed to the IFRS treatment in determining
the fair value of the Group’s interest in BEPIF Aggregator. The difference is reconciled as follows:

2021

€000
BEPIF Aggregator: Amounts attributable to BEPIF Master FCP .. 430,971
Adjustments
Exit strategy assumption™ ... ... ... 50,951
Deferred tax in relation to investment property ............ (21,338)
Fair market value of debt investments at amortised cost® .. ... (65)
Fair market value of loans and borrowings® . ............... (1,545)
Non-controlling interest effect® . ........................ (1,210)
Otherdifferences ....... ... . . (626)

26,167
The Group: Investments at fairvalue ..................... 457,138

Explanation of adjustments:

(1) For BEPIF Aggregator, IFRS requires investment property to be valued on the basis of an asset sale. In valuing its
investments, the Group, in line with market practice, adopts a probability-weighted assessment of a sale
occurring via an asset or corporate sale. BEPIF Aggregator’s valuation is consequently lower due to additional
transaction costs in an asset sale.

(2

-

For BEPIF Aggregator, IFRS requires deferred tax to be fully recognised only on any post-acquisition revaluation
of investment property. In valuing its investments, the Group adopts a probability-weighted assessment of the
price reduction a purchaser would require to assume the potential tax liability; including any gains within the
entity owning the property which predate BEPIF’'s ownership.

3

-

For BEPIF Aggregator, IFRS requires certain debt investments are held at amortised cost compared to their fair
market value adopted when valuing investments by the Group.

(4) For BEPIF Aggregator, IFRS requires loans and borrowings to be held at amortised cost compared to their fair
market value adopted when valuing the debt of the Group.

(5) The extent to which reconciling items (1) to (4) relate to balances where BEPIF owns less than 100% of the
investment.
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V. Property income

Investment properties are leased to tenants mainly under non-cancellable commercial property leases. Terms vary
by jurisdiction and the nature of the property but typically include clauses for periodic upward only rent reviews
and recovery of service charge expenditure. On review, rents are increased by either contractual formula (for
example linked to an inflation index) or to current market rent. Single let properties are typically leased on terms
where the tenant is responsible for repair, insurance and running costs whilst multi-let properties are leased on
terms which include an allocation of such expenditure between tenants.

2021

€000
Grossrentsreceivable . ....... ... . 2,343
Impact of leaseincentives . .. ....... ... ... ... . . 134
Rentalincome ... ... . i 2,477
Service chargeincome ....... ... 173
Total property income — continuing operations ............... 2,650
Discontinued operations: rentalincome ..................... 313
Total propertyincome ........... ... ... . ... . ... . ..., 2,963

The geographic breakdown of property income is as follows:

2021

€000
(=T 210 = /2 1,938
UK o e 532
1Y o - 11 77
CzechRepublic ... . 54
The Netherlands . ... ... i 49
Total property income — continuing operations ............... 2,650
Discontinued operations: Poland ........... ... .. ... .. ..... 313
Total propertyincome ........... ... ... ... .. . i, 2,963

The future aggregate minimum rental income under non-cancellable operating leases is summarised below. These
figures exclude the impact of any inflation linked increases in rent but include any minimum rental uplifts. Excluded
from these figures is €19.7m of future rent from properties classified as held for sale.

2021

€000
Lessthan dyear. . ......vr it 40,379
L2 W aArS e e 40,648
2= YA i e 38,083
Y- | 34,355
A-S Y aArS e e 34,358
Thereafter . ... 320,731
Total ... 508,554
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4c Fair value
Valuation oversight

The AIFM is responsible for the proper and independent valuation of the assets of BEPIF Feeder SICAV. The
Investment Manager provides valuation advice and assists the AIFM in the valuation of the assets of BEPIF Feeder
SICAV, while the AIFM ensures that the valuation function is independent from the Investment Manager and
performed in accordance with applicable law.

The AIFM has engaged Altus Group to serve as independent valuation advisor with respect to properties and
certain real estate debt and other securities. Altus Group will review the quarterly internal valuations prepared by
the AIFM.

Fair value methodology

The fair value of the Group’s interest in BEPIF Aggregator at the end of the period is based on the share of the
aggregate fair value of BEPIF’s investments less the fair value of loans and borrowings and other net assets.
Methodologies used to determine fair value on material components of the valuation that are subject to significant
estimation uncertainty are described below. For other material components (for example working capital) the fair
value approximates the IFRS carrying value on a historical cost basis.

e Investment property

The discounted cash flow methodology (income approach) is the primary methodology, whereby a
property’s value is calculated by discounting the estimated cash flows and the anticipated terminal value of
the subject property by the assumed new buyer’s normalized weighted average cost of capital for the
subject property. Consistent with industry practices, the income approach also incorporates subjective
judgments regarding comparable rental and operating expense data, capitalisation or discount rate, and
projections of future rent and expenses based on appropriate evidence as well as the residual value of the
asset as components in determining value.

Other methodologies that may also be used to value properties include sales comparisons and replacement
cost approaches. Under the sales comparison approach, an opinion of value is developed by comparing the
subject property to similar, recently sold properties in the surrounding or competing area. The replacement
cost approach relies on the principle of substitution, which holds that when a property is replaceable in the
market, its value tends to be set at the cost of acquiring an equally desirable substitute property, assuming
that no costly delay is encountered in making the substitution.

Investments may also be valued at their acquisition price for a period of time after an acquisition as the
best measure of fair value in the absence of any conditions or circumstances that would indicate otherwise.

A portfolio of properties may be valued as a single investment and the AIFM may determine what
properties should be grouped in a portfolio. The AIFM assesses whether a disposal of the property would
most likely occur via a sale of the property asset or a sale of the legal entity which owns the property.
Adjustments a market participant would make for consequential transaction costs, transfer taxes or
unrealised capital gains taxes are deducted from the gross value of the property.

Each property will be appraised by an independent third-party appraiser at least annually. Annual appraisals
may be delayed for a short period in exceptional circumstances. Such valuations can take place at any

month end during the year and hence may not coincide with the year-end valuation. In the month in which
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the annual appraisal is received the AIFM’s end-of-month valuation will fall within the range of the third-
party appraisal; however, valuations thereafter may be outside of the range of values provided in the most
recent third-party appraisal. Given the recent dates of the acquisitions, no external appraisals have been
obtained for the period.

e Fquity investments

The investment in BPPE at the year end is valued at the net asset value of the units held as valued by BPPE’s
alternative investment fund manager (which is also the AIFM). BPPE generally values its investments and
liabilities quarterly (including at 31 December 2021) in a manner otherwise consistent with the “Property
Investments” above and “Liabilities” below.

Other non-listed equity investments are valued by the AIFM at BEPIF’s share of the assets and liabilities of
the investee using methods consistent with those described in this note.

e Debt investments

At 31 December 2021 the sole debt investment was a bilateral loan. To value this debt investment the AIFM
will initially determine if there is adequate collateral real estate value supporting the investment and
whether the investment’s yield approximates market yield. If the market yield is estimated to approximate
the investment’s yield, then the investment is valued at its par value. If the market yield is not estimated to
approximate the investment’s yield, the AIFM will project the expected cash flows of the investment based
on its contractual terms and discount such cash flows back to the valuation date based on an estimated
market yield.

e Loans and borrowings

Fair value of loans and borrowings are determined by discounting the expected cash flows on the loan at a
market rate of interest.

Estimation uncertainty

The fair value of the Group’s investment in joint ventures falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined
by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. A significant proportion of the underlying assumptions are unobservable and
hence there is significant estimation uncertainty associated with the valuation.

Because of the inherent uncertainties associated with the valuation, the carrying amount of investments at the
year end may differ significantly from the value that could be realised in an arm’s length transaction.

Fair value is based on events and conditions that existed at the year end. No adjustment is made for subsequent
events unless they provide more information about circumstances that existed at the year end. Subsequent
investment specific events or general economic, political and geographic conditions (including the Russian invasion
of Ukraine described in Section IV of the Management Report) may have a significant impact on fair value in the
future.
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A summary of significant valuation methods, assumptions, and sensitivity to changes in assumptions for BEPIF's
investments is presented in the table below:

Increase/(decrease) in

Significant value for a change in
Gross asset unobservable Weighted rate of
Asset class value Valuation technique inputs Range average +25 bps -25 bps
€000 €000 €000

Logistics . ........... 362,019 DCF Discount rate 5.6-6.2% 5.9% (10,605) 10,869
Exit caprate  3.4-4.0% 3.7%  (24,241) 27,801

Logistics . ........... 664,432 Acquisition price n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Data Centres ........ 238,754 Acquisition price n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
BPPE .............. 184,957 Reported value®  n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Debt investment .. ... 94,288 Acquisition price n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

(1) Includes the value of the investment in other equity instruments.
(2) The Group’s share of the Gross Asset Value of BPPE’s property investments as reported by the BPPE.
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5. Cash and cash equivalents

2021

€000
Cashatbank ......... .. i e 599
Restrictedcash ......... .. 52,939
Total cash and cashequivalents .......................... 53,538

Restricted cash

BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP receive cash for subscriptions in advance of the trade date on the first of
each month. Such cash is held in a separate bank account managed by the Depositary and is not available for use
by the Group until the subscription date.

6. Trade and other payables

2021

€000

Servicingfeepayable ......... ... . .. ... 458
ACCIUALS ot 483
Total trade and other payables .................. ... ....... 941

7. Subscriptions received in advance

Subscriptions received in advance remain unsecured creditors of the Group until the issuance of the shares has
been completed. At 31 December 2021, all of the subscriptions in advance relate to BEPIF Feeder SICAV.

2021
€000
Asat 1l June ... e —
Proceeds forissueofshares ............... ... ... ... ... 487,288
Issueofshares ....... ... .. ... i (434,349)
Asat31December .......... ... ... ... 52,939

8. Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent amounts attributable to minority investors in BEPIF Master FCP. The units in BEPIF
Master FCP issued to minority investors are subject to comparable terms described for BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s own
shares in note 10. There are no redemption requests in BEPIF Master FCP outstanding at 31 December 2021.

2021
€000

Asat 1l June ... e —
Cash flows
Proceeds forissueof units .......... ... .. 9,300
Non-cash items
Share of gains of BEPIF Master FCP() . ... .................... 105
Asat31December ......... ... .. . ... 9,405

(1) Comprises a gain of €0.3m under the Valuation Policy and a loss of €0.2m for accrued organisation and offering
expenses under IFRS.
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9. Expenses

2021
Notes €000

Managementfees ........ ... ... 12 —
Administrator and Depositaryfees ........... ... . ... ... ... ... 71
Directors’ fee ... v i 12 26
Subscriptiontax ... e 13
Other eXpenses . ... e e e 393
Expenses (excluding servicingfees) ........................... 503
Servicing fee for Class Ashareholders .......................... 458
Total eXpenses . . ...t 961

Of the expenses for the period, €0.7m was incurred by BEPIF Feeder SICAV (including €0.5m of servicing fees) and
€0.3m by BEPIF Master FCP respectively.

Management fee
Details on fees payable to the Investment Manager can be found in note 12.
Fees payable to the auditor

BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s auditor is Deloitte Audit S.a. r.I (“Deloitte”). Deloitte’s fee for the audit of these financial
statements is €25,000. In addition Deloitte is the auditor of BEPIF Master FCP, BEPIF Aggregator and certain of its
subsidiaries for which Deloitte’s fees total €144,100. No non-audit fees were paid in the period by the Group or
BEPIF Aggregator.

Subscription tax

Under the current system of taxation in Luxembourg both BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP are exempt
from paying income taxes. Instead, the net assets of each entity, without duplication, is subject to Luxembourg
subscription tax.

Servicing fee

Holders of Class A shares in BEPIF Feeder SICAV are subject to a servicing fee of 0.75% per annum (calculated
monthly) on the Net Asset Value, prior to accrual of the servicing fee, of such units. Class | shares do not incur a
servicing fee.

10. Amounts due to Shareholders

Terms of the share classes set out below are intended to be an aide-mémoire and for compliance with the
requirements of IFRS. Shareholders should refer to BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s Prospectus for the full terms applicable to
their shares.

Classes of Shares

During the period, BEPIF Feeder SICAV had issued shares in four classes: Class Iy, |5, Ap and A,. Except as otherwise
described below, the terms of each class of shares are identical.
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Class A, and Class I, shares are “Accumulation Sub-Class” shares and Class Ap and Class Iy shares are “Distribution
Sub-Class” shares. Shareholders that subscribe for Distribution Sub-Class shares will receive in cash any
distributions that BEPIF Feeder SICAV pays in respect of such shares. No distributions are paid on the Accumulation
Sub-Class shares, the value of distributions that would have otherwise been paid are reflected in the value of those
shares.

Class A, and Class A, shareholders are charged a Servicing Fee (see note 9) of 0.75% per annum payable to their
financial intermediary. No Servicing Fee is payable on Class I, or Class I, shares.

Subscriptions

Subscriptions to purchase shares may be made on an ongoing basis and are effective as of the first calendar day of
each month (a “Subscription Date”). The full purchase price of the shares being subscribed for must be received by
BEPIF Feeder SICAV at least four business days prior to the Subscription Date. The offering price will equal the Net
Asset Value per share of the applicable share class determined as of the last calendar day of the previous month.

The Investment Manager may accept, delay acceptance, or reject subscriptions in its sole discretion, including
choosing to reject or delay acceptance of all subscriptions for a given month.

Redemptions

A shareholder may request to have some or all of their shares redeemed by BEPIF Feeder SICAV (a “Redemption
Request”) as of the closing of the last calendar day of each month (each a “Redemption Date”) by submitting a
notice to BEPIF Feeder SICAV on or before the first business day of such month.

Amounts distributed in connection with a redemption will be based upon the Net Asset Value per share of the
applicable share class as of the last calendar day of the applicable month, except for shares that have been held for
a period of less than 12 months in which case an early redemption deduction equal to 5% of the value of the Net
Asset Value of the shares being redeemed will apply. Early redemption deductions will inure to the benefit of BEPIF
Aggregator and hence indirectly to investors in all Funds.

BEPIF Feeder SICAV expects that settlements of share redemptions will generally be made within 60 calendar days
of the Redemption Date. No distributions are payable on shares subject to a Redemption Request after the
Redemption Date.

The aggregate Net Asset Value of total redemptions across the Funds is generally limited to 2% of aggregate Net
Asset Value per month of all Funds and 5% of such aggregate Net Asset Value per calendar quarter. In exceptional
circumstances and not on a systematic basis, BEPIF Feeder SICAV may make exceptions to, modify or suspend, in
whole or in part, the redemption programme if in the Investment Manager’s reasonable judgment it deems such
action to be in the Funds’ best interest and the best interest of the Funds’ investors, such as when redemptions of
shares would place an undue burden on liquidity, adversely affect operations, risk having an adverse impact on
BEPIF Feeder SICAV that would outweigh the benefit of redemptions of shares or as a result of legal or regulatory
changes.

At 31 December 2021 BEPIF Feeder SICAV had no redemption requests outstanding.
Allocation of profits

Profits are allocated to shareholders each month based on the relative Net Asset Value of each share class on the
first of the month (after subscriptions for that month). Servicing fees are allocated solely to the share class to which
the fee relates.
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Distributions

BEPIF Feeder SICAV intends to declare and pay monthly distributions to holders of Distribution Sub-Class shares.
Any distributions made are at the discretion of the Investment Manager, considering factors such as earnings, cash
flow, capital needs, taxes, general financial condition and the requirements of applicable law. The per share
amount of distributions on Class A and Class | shares will generally differ because of servicing fees.

BEPIF Feeder SICAV has not declared any distributions during the financial period. Subsequent to the period end
and up to the date of issuance of these financial statements distributions have been declared totalling 9.03 cents
and 6.99 cents per share on Class |, and A, shares respectively.
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Reconciliation of amounts attributable to shareholders

NAV Number NAV per
Class Ip of shares share
€000 ‘000 €
Asat 11June 2021 . ... . e — — 10.00
Sharesissued . ........ i e 64,023 6,284 —
Profit for the period before share class specific expenses .. .. 2,022 - 0.51
Distributionsdeclared ........... ... ... . ... . ..., — — —
As at 31 December 2021 (IFRS) .......... ..., 66,045 6,284 10.51
Share of organisational and offering expenses ............ 1,105 — 0.18
Net Asset Value at 31 December 2021 67,150 6,284 10.69
NAV Number NAV per
Class 1, of shares share
€000 ‘000 €
Asat 11June 2021 . ... . e — — 10.00
Sharesissued . ... 77,042 7,548 —
Profit for the period before share class specific expenses .. .. 2,296 - 0.51
As at 31 December 2021 (IFRS) .......... ..., 79,338 7,548 10.51
Share of organisational and offering expenses ............ 1,328 — 0.18
Net Asset Value at 31 December 2021 80,666 7,548 10.69
NAV Number NAV per
Class Ap of shares share
€000 ‘000 €
Asat 11June 2021 . ... . e — — 10.00
Sharesissued ......... .. i 182,777 17,952 —
Profit for the period before share class specific expenses .. .. 5,847 - 0.51
Distributionsdeclared ............ ... ... ... . ... ... — — —
Servicingfee .. ... (289) - (0.02)
As at 31 December 2021 (IFRS) . ... .o 188,335 17,952 10.49
Share of organisational and offering expenses ............ 3,152 — 0.18
Net Asset Value at 31 December 2021 191,487 17,952 10.67
NAV Number NAV per
Class A, of shares share
€000 ‘000 €
Asat 11June 2021 . ... . e — — 10.00
Sharesissued . ........ i e 110,507 10,835 —
Profit for the period before share class specific expenses .. .. 3,335 - 0.51
Servicingfee .. ... (169) - (0.02)
As at 31 December 2021 (IFRS) . ... .o 113,673 10,835 10.49
Share of organisational and offering expenses ............ 1,903 — 0.18
Net Asset Value at 31 December 2021 115,576 10,835 10.67
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Capital Management

BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s investment objective is to generate attractive risk-adjusted returns on a diversified direct and
indirect portfolio of real estate and real estate-related investments over the medium to long-term. The Board, with
the assistance of the Investment Manager, monitors BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s capital so as to promote the long-term
success of the business and achievement of its investment objectives. BEPIF Feeder SICAV considers proceeds from
issue of shares (which are classified as liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position), external
borrowings and retained profits as its capital. Under Luxembourg law BEPIF Feeder SICAV is required to maintain a
minimum capital balance of €1.25m. There are no other externally imposed capital requirements.

Leverage

BEPIF Feeder SICAV will not incur indebtedness, directly or indirectly, that would cause the Leverage Ratio (as
defined in the Prospectus) to be in excess of 55%. This limit may be exceeded on a temporary basis to satisfy short-
term liquidity needs, refinance existing borrowings or for other obligations. At 31 December 2021 the Leverage
Ratio was 54.2%.

11. Financial risk management
The AIFM

The AIFM is in charge of the risk management function of BEPIF Feeder SICAV. The AIFM is authorized as
alternative investment fund manager and supervised by the Luxembourg supervisory authority, the Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the “CSSF”).

The AIFM has established and maintains a dedicated risk management function that implements effective risk
management policies and procedures in order to identify, measure, manage and monitor on an ongoing basis all
risks relevant to BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s investment objective including in particular market, credit, liquidity,
counterparty, operational and all other relevant risks.

The risk management staff within the AIFM supervise the compliance of these policies and procedures in
accordance with the requirements of applicable circulars or regulation issued by the CSSF or any European
authority authorized to issue related regulation or technical standards which are applicable to BEPIF Feeder SICAV.

The AIFM is also the alternative investment fund manager of BEPIF Master FCP and undertakes analogous
responsibilities and procedures to those described for BEPIF Feeder SICAV.

The Depositary

BEPIF Feeder SICAV and BEPIF Master FCP have appointed RBC Investor Services Bank S.A. (“the Depositary”) as
depositary bank and paying agent.

The duties of the Depositary include: the safekeeping of financial instruments that can be held in custody and
record keeping and verification of ownership of the other assets; oversight duties, and cash flow monitoring in
accordance with applicable Luxembourg law.

Financial instruments

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to risks from its financial instruments other than
amounts due to its shareholders which are described in note 10.
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Approximately all of the Group’s directly held financial instruments are the interest in BEPIF Aggregator. The rights
attaching to this investment are governed by the LPA. The LPA’s terms are aligned with the investment objectives
and liquidity requirements of the Group.

The Directors consider that the objectives of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures are met by providing
disclosures looking through to the investments held via BEPIF Aggregator as well as for the Group’s directly held
financial instruments. Such figures are reported at BEPIF’s share (of which BEPIF Feeder SICAV has an 85%
economic interest at 31 December 2021).

Market risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices.

Market risks arise from (a) market price for investments, (b) foreign currencies and (c) interest bearing assets and
liabilities.

Market price for investments

Price risk exposure arises on investments, which comprise both financial instruments (investments in BPPE and
debt investments) and non-financial instruments in the case of investment property.

The methods used to determine fair value are described in note 4c.
Foreign exchange risk
At 31 December 2021, the Group has no non-euro balances.

Investments are held in several jurisdictions where the euro is not the local currency. Exposure to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, expressed in euro, is as follows:

At 31 December 2021 GBP Other(?) Total
€000 €000 €000

Foreign currency items

Investmentproperty ......... i 365,839 10,353 376,192
Investment in other equity instruments ................ 181,245 — 181,245
Cashand cashequivalents .......................... 4,565 32 4,597
Other net current assets/(liabilities) . .................. (6,092) (112) (6,103)
Loans and borrowings (current and non-current) ........ (392,872) — (392,872)
Lease liability (current and non-current) ............... — (10,353) (10,353)
Disposal group net assets and liabilities ................ — 1,197 1,197

152,685 1,218 153,903
Sensitivity analysis
Gain/(loss) from a 5% weakening of the euro on:
Amounts attributable to limited partners........... (3,826) 61 (3,765)
Result fortheperiod ........... ... ... ... ....... 3,167 (3) 3,164

(1) Other includes amounts in Polish Zloty (PLN) and Czech Koruna (CZK).

In addition there is indirect exposure to foreign currency arises via the investment in BPPE as BPPE holds real estate
investments in multiple European countries where the euro is not the local currency.
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Foreign currency risk is managed by aligning the currency of loans and borrowings to the currency of non-euro
investments. The Investment Manager frequently monitors its remaining exposure to foreign currency and may use
derivatives to reduce the risk accordingly but has no requirement to do so. At 31 December 2021 the following
forward contract was held to reduce exposure on GBP-denominated investments.

Valuation
Derivative contract type Notional amount Effective date Maturity date asset/(liability)
‘000
Forward contract ............. GBP 64,000 18 October 2021 20 January 2022 (514)

Subsequent to the period end, this forward contract was renewed for a further three months.
Interest rate risk

The Group has no material interest rate exposure. Fluctuations in market interest rates may impact the fair value of
interest-bearing investments and financial liabilities, as well as their future cash flows. All loans and borrowings
held by investments at 31 December 2021 have floating rates of interest.

At 31 December 2021 Increase Decrease
€000 €000

Sensitivity analysis

Gain/(loss) from a 50 bps change in interest rates:
Amounts attributable to limited partners .............. (159) 159
Resultfortheperiod ......... ... ... ... ... ... ...... (159) 159

There are no prescribed policies on hedging interest rate risk and at 31 December 2021 no derivatives to hedge
interest rate risk were held. Subsequent to the period end, a GBP 266m 10-year interest rate swap commencing in
February 2024 was entered into.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will fail to meet its contractual obligations. The Group has no material
exposure to credit risk. Credit risk in investments principally arises from rents due from tenants of investment
properties (or properties held by equity investments), amounts due from counterparties to debt investments and
cash and cash equivalents.

Trade and other receivables

Exposure to credit risk is key factor assessed before making any property or debt investment. The credit worthiness
of tenants and borrowers is also assessed prior to any new or amended contract being entered into. This process
includes seeking external ratings and reviewing financial information where these are available. Collection of
amounts due from customers is subject to at least a monthly review.

Gross Loss Net
At 31 December 2021 receivable allowance receivable
€000 €000 €000
Ageing analysis
Notpastdue ........ ... . ... 13,308 — 13,308
Total ... 13,308 — 13,308

Collateral may be required from tenants in the form of a rent deposit, parent company guarantee or a bank
guarantee. At 31 December 2021, €2.5m of such deposits were held which relate to €0.2m of the trade receivables
at the period end. Therefore, the maximum exposure to credit risk from its trade and other receivables is €13.1m.
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Ongoing to exposure to credit risk on trade and other receivables is considered low. Based on analysis of the
composition of the trade and other receivables, there is no provision for expected credit losses as at period end.

Debt investments

The borrower of BEPIF’s debt investment has made all scheduled interest payments. At 31 December 2021 BEPIF
had recognised €0.5m of accrued interest income which has been settled post period-end.

Cash and cash equivalents
All of the Group’s cash accounts are held with the Depositary which has a credit rating of AA-.

Cash held in investments is intended to be held with two primary banking providers, ING Bank Luxembourg S.A.
and BGL BNP Paribas S.A.. The credit rating of each of these institutions is A+. At 31 December 2021, 91% of cash
was held with these banks. The remaining cash is held across seven banks and relates to acquisitions made close to
the period end. Such accounts are typically transferred to the primary banking providers in the months following
acquisition.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity is monitored by the Investment Manager at least weekly and considers committed and forecast
investments, contractual cash payments and receipts, available cash and cash equivalents and access to undrawn
debt facilities. Sources of funding and the impact on future liquidity are assessed as part of the decision to proceed
with any new investment. At the date of issuing these financial statements, there are no material uncertainties
regarding the ability of any investment to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

All of the Group’s financial liabilities have maturities of three months or less.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of financial liabilities held by investments based on contractual
undiscounted payments (including forecasted future interest payments).

At 31 December 2021 Carrying Cash flows
value Total Lessthan From1-2 From2-5 Laterthan
1vyear years years 5 years
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Loans and borrowings
Acquisition Facility ................... 581,918 599,287 9,984 589,303 — —
Acquisition Facility included in liabilities
heldforsale ...................... 113,155 113,579 113,579 — — —
Lineofcredit........................ 273,293 274,248 274,248 — — —
Loans from non-controlling interests . . . .. 7,070 7,070 7,070 — - -
Lease liabilities .......................... 10,353 13,067 415 415 1,244 10,993
Derivatives ........ .. ... i 514 514 514 - - -
Trade and other payables®.@ ... ... ........ 74,619 75,421 62,951 2,090 6,269 4,111
Performance participation allocation
payable ....... ... .. ... .. 3,147 3,147 3,147 — — —
Total 1,064,069 1,086,333 471,908 591,808 7,513 15,104

(1) Balance excludes deferred income and any taxes payable which are not financial liabilities as defined by IFRS.
(2) Includes amounts presented within disposal group liabilities held for sale.
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The Acquisition Facility requires cash to be held to the value of the next interest payment in a separate debt service
account before any cash can be transferred outside of the sub-group over which the lenders have security. At
31 December 2021 €2.2m of the cash held by investments was subject to this restriction. There is no other cash
restriction aside from amounts relating to tenant security deposits disclosed in the Credit risk section above.

12. Related party transactions
Fees payable to affiliates of Blackstone Inc.
Management fee

The Investment Manager and AIFM are entitled to a management fee of 1.25% per annum of BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s
and BEPIF Master FCP’s (without duplication) net asset value computed, and paid, monthly. The applicable net
asset value is prior to deducting accruals for the management fee, the servicing fee (note 9), the share of the
Performance Participation Allocation in BEPIF Aggregator, any redemptions for the month, and any distributions
declared in the month. The Investment Manager may elect to receive the Management fee in cash, shares of BEPIF
Feeder SICAV, units of BEPIF Master FCP or units in BEPIF Aggregator.

The management fee has been waived for first six months following the date on which the Group accepted its first
subscriptions (1 October 2021).

Performance Participation Allocation

The Special Limited Partner of BEPIF Aggregator contributed $500,000 in consideration for its special limited
partnership interest. This interest gives the Special Limited Partner an entitlement to a Performance Participation
Allocation contingent on the financial performance of BEPIF.

The Performance Participation Allocation charged is equal to 12.5% of Total Return subject to a 5% annual Hurdle
Amount and a High Water Mark with 100% Catch-Up, crystallized on 30 June of each year (subject to pro-rating for
partial years).

The Total Return for any period since the end of the prior Reference Period equals the sum of all distributions
accrued or paid on units outstanding at the end of such period over the course of the Reference Period; plus the
change in aggregate Net Asset Value of such units since the beginning of the Reference Period; minus all expenses
of the Funds but excluding applicable expenses for Servicing Fees or similar fees.

The Hurdle Amount for any period during a Reference Period means that amount that results in a 5% annualized
internal rate of return on the Net Asset Value of units outstanding at the beginning of the then-current Reference
Period and all units issued since the beginning of the then-current Reference Period.

The Loss Carryforward Amount shall initially equal zero and shall cumulatively increase by the absolute value of any
negative Total Return and decrease by any positive annual Total Return; provided, that the Loss Carryforward
Amount shall at no time be less than zero. The effect of the Loss Carryforward Amount is that the recoupment of
past annual Total Return losses will offset the positive annual Total Return for purposes of the calculation of the
Performance Participation Allocation. This is referred to as a “High Water Mark.”
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The Performance Participation Allocation due to the Special Limited Partner is an amount equal to:

(i) First, if the Total Return for the applicable period exceeds the sum of (i) the Hurdle Amount for that period
and (ii) the Loss Carryforward Amount (any such excess, “Excess Profits”), 100% of such annual Excess
Profits until the total amount allocated equals 12.5% of the sum of (x) the Hurdle Amount for that period
and (y) any amount allocated pursuant to this clause (this is commonly referred to as a “Catch Up”); and

(i) Second, to the extent there are remaining Excess Profits, 12.5% of such remaining Excess Profits.

As well as becoming payable on 30 June, a Performance Participation Allocation also becomes payable on full or
partial redemption of a limited partner’s interest based on BEPIF’s performance to the redemption date. The
Special Limited Partner will not be obligated to return any portion of the Performance Participation Allocation paid
due to the subsequent performance of BEPIF.

The Special Limited Partner can elect to have the Performance Participation Allocation settled in cash, partners’
capital in BEPIF Aggregator or as an investment in a Fund.

A reconciliation of the Performance Participation Allocation for the period is shown below:

Attributable to Total
BEPIF Parallel
Master FCP vehicles
€000 €000 €000
Balance at 28 June 2021 ......... ... .. ... — — —
Performance Participation Allocation accrued .............. 3,036 111 3,147
Balance at 31 December2021........... ... i, 3,036 111 3,147

The accrued Performance Participation Allocation at 31 December 2021 relates to performance for the period
1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021. Settlement of this amount on 30 June 2022 is contingent on performance of
BEPIF between the year end and the settlement date.

General Partner of BEPIF Aggregator

Blackstone European Property Income Fund Associates (Lux) S.a r.l. is the general partner of BEPIF Aggregator. For
its services, the General Partner is entitled to an annual amount of the higher of $10,000 or an amount equal to all
out-of-pocket costs plus an arm’s length net profit margin. The amount payable for the period ended 31 December
2021 was $10k all of which was outstanding at the period end.

Administration fees

The Investment Manager has charged the Group €0.2m for accounting and administrative services, of which €0.1m
related to organisational and offering expenses. All fees were outstanding at the period end.

Revantage Global Services Europe S.a. r.l. (“Revantage Europe”), a portfolio company of Blackstone Inc. managed
funds, provides BEPIF Aggregator and its investments with corporate support services. Fees payable for the period
were €1.8m of which €0.9m related to organisational and offering expenses. Of the total fee, €1.5m was
outstanding at the period end.
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Organisational and offering expenses

The Investment Manager agreed to advance all of BEPIF’s qualifying organisational and offering expenses, such as
legal, regulatory and advisory fees, until 30 September 2022. These costs will be reimbursed to the Investment
Manager rateably over 60 months from October 2022.

Total costs advanced by the Investment Manager up to 31 December 2021 are €10.4m. After discounting for the
deferred repayment terms and adjusting for ownership of BEPIF, the cost attributable to BEPIF Feeder SICAV is
€7.5m. The allocation between Funds depends on their relative ownership of BEPIF therefore the actual impact on
BEPIF Feeder SICAV’s Net Asset Value will vary based on the relative holding of BEPIF at the point of
reimbursement of the Investment Manager.

Transactions with BPPE

The general partner of Blackstone Property Partners Europe (Lux) SCSp is member of the Blackstone Inc. group and
hence under common control with the Investment Manager.

Transactions with BPPE in BEPIF’s capacity as a limited partner are included in note 4b.l.

BEPIF is not charged management or performance fees by Blackstone in respect of its investment in BPPE.
Other transactions with affiliates of Blackstone

Alaska Logistics Portfolio

In July 2021, in advance of BEPIF Feeder SICAV accepting its first subscriptions, Blackstone European Property
Income Fund Associates (Lux) S.a. r.l., a subsidiary of Blackstone Inc. acquired a 16% investment in the Alaska
Logistics Portfolio for £140.0m. BEPIF agreed an option to acquire the Alaska Logistics Portfolio at a 5% per annum
premium, which amounted to £1.7m on completion of the acquisition (total consideration paid of £141.7m
(€166.0m)).

BPPE is the majority owner, and ultimate controlling party, of the Alaska Logistics Portfolio. Another Blackstone
managed Core+ investment fund also owns an interest in this investment. In aggregate these funds own 74.9% of
the Alaska Logistics Portfolio.

Coldplay and Evergreen Logistics Portfolios

Another Blackstone managed Core+ investment fund owns the 10.1% non-controlling interest of Coldplay and
Evergreen Logistics Portfolios. Neither investor has rights or obligations associated with these investments beyond
their pro rata ownership.

Line of Credit

The Line of Credit is provided by Blackstone Holdings Finance Co. L.L.C.; a subsidiary of Blackstone Inc., to BEPIF
Aggregator. Terms of the facility can be found in note 4b.lIl. As at 31 December 2021 the outstanding principal was
€106.0m and GBP 140.2m (€166.8m). Interest payable for the period totalled €0.4m and GBP 0.3m (€0.3m) of
which €0.2m and GBP 0.3m (€0.3m) was outstanding at the period end.
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Bilateral loan investment

The €95m debt investment was provided to a portfolio company of other investment funds managed by Blackstone
Inc. An arrangement fee of €0.7m was received by BEPIF Aggregator at inception of the loan. Interest income of
€0.7m was accrued for the period of which €0.5m was outstanding at the period end.

Key management personnel

Directors of BEPIF Feeder SICAV have been paid €26k for services rendered. None of the directors who receive
remuneration are employees of the Blackstone Inc. group.

Investments in BEPIF

The Investment Manager provided the initial incorporation capital of BEPIF Feeder SICAV, subscribing for €30,000
Class Iy shares at €10.00 per unit.

At the period end, Directors of BEPIF Feeder SICAV and other key management personnel of the Investment
Manager owned shares in BEPIF Feeder SICAV valued at €1.0m and units in BEPIF Master FCP valued at €9.4m. All
shares/units were acquired at their then Net Asset Value.

13. Subsequent events

Subsequent to the period end BEPIF Feeder SICAV had net subscriptions for shares of €482.9m. The uses of
proceeds include:

e Infinity Office Asset —in February 2022 BEPIF acquired a 100% interest in a 30,000 square meter Grade-A
office building in central Dublin, Ireland for €424.1m (including the deposit paid prior to the year-end of
€39.2m).

e Gurston Office Asset - In April 2022, BEPIF acquired a 100% interest in a 29,000 square meter Grade-A office
in Birmingham, United Kingdom for GBP 181.6m (€214.3m).

Considerations of the conflict in Ukraine can be found in the Principal risks and Uncertainties section of the
Management Report.
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